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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS




MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors

The Board of Commissioners
Port of Portland

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets and the related statements of revenues, expenses,

and changes in net position and cash flows of the Airport and Marine & Other activities as of and for the

year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise
the Port of Portland’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the Airport and Marine & Other activities of the Port of Portland as of
June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.



Other Matters
Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the Port of Portland’s 2017 financial statements, and we expressed an
unmodified audit opinion on those audited financial statements in our report dated October 24, 2017. In our
opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein as of and for the year ended June 30,
2017 is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial statements from which it has been
derived.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that management’s
discussion and analysis, schedule of changes in total OPEB liability and related ratios, schedule of
proportionate share of PERS net pension liability (asset), and schedule of contributions to PERS be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic
financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information
and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.
We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Port of Portland's basic financial statements. The supplementary information as listed in the
table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. These schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and
related directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the
supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial
statements as a whole.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued
our report dated October 22, 2018, on our consideration of the Port’'s compliance with certain provisions of
laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and
the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

it . Togno

James Lanzarotta, Partner
for Moss Adams LLP
Portland, Oregon

October 22, 2018
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The Port of Portland
Management'’s Discussion and Analysis

This discussion and analysis of the Port of Podf&(Port) financial performance provides an ovewof
the Port’s financial activities for the fiscal yemrded June 30, 2018. Please read it in conjunetith the
Port’s financial statements, which follow this seot

Overview of the Financial Statements:

These financial statements consist of four pamsanagement’s discussion and analysis (this sectiba)
basic financial statements (including notes), remlisupplementary information, and supplementary
information. The report is guided by accounting agporting principles established by the Goverrtalen
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), and also by @regon Secretary of State (OSS). The basic
financial statements are prepared on the accrigs,bsimilar to a private business, whereby reverare
recognized when earned and expenses are recoguimadincurred, regardless of when cash is received
paid. The basic financial statements consist lpdlance sheet, which includes the Port's assetkidimg
deferred outflows, liabilities, including deferrddflows, and net position at year end; statement of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net positiolch whcludes all revenues, expenses, and grants
expended for construction for the year; and stateémfcash flows, which presents the sources ard af
cash for the year. The financial statements alstudle notes that explain some of the informatioihie
financial statements and provide more detailed.d&allowing the financial statements is a sectidn
supplementary information, nearly all of which equired by the GASB, the OSS, or bond ordinances.
The Port's two activities are Airport (Portland dmtational Airport) and Marine & Other (marine
terminals, industrial development, environmentakvigation, general aviation, engineering, and
administration). These activities are describedNates 1 and 2 to the financial statements. Otigpe
significance to readers of the financial stateménthat, with certain limited exceptions, Airparonies
are restricted by bond ordinances and Federal isiaddministration regulations for use at the Airpo
only. Airport net revenues (essentially operatiagenues less operating expenses other than datioayi
are largely determined by bond ordinances and aotstiwith airlines, as more fully explained in Nété&o

the financial statements.

During fiscal 2018, the Port applied new reportstgndards for postemployment benefits other than
pension (OPEB) as required by GASB Statement No(GASB 75). GASB 75 had an impact on the
Port’s balance sheet and the statement of revemxegnses, and changes in net position. Accounting
changes were applied retroactively to conform lith provisions of GASB 75, and fiscal 2017 has been
restated. Further discussion of the impacts ofrtiementation of GASB 75 can be found in Notesnd

9 to the financial statements.

Financial Results:

The Port’s total net position increased $51.1 orillfrom the 2017 amount, or 4.0 percent. Unrdsilioet
position — the portion of net position that canused to finance day-to-day operations without caiTsis
established by debt covenants or legal requiremerntgreased slightly by $0.6 million, or 0.5 perce
during that same time. In comparison, last yeaaltoet position increased by $95.3 million, or 8.0
percent. The analysis in Table 1 (below) focusethe net position of the Airport and of the PoMarine

& Other activities separately.



The Port of Portland
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

Table 1
Net Position
($ millions) Total
Percentage
Airport Marine & Other Total Port Change
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2017-2018

Current and other assets $ 617.8 649.3 $ 3013 $ 2936 $ 889.8 *$ 912.7 (2.5)%
Capital assets 1,348.2 1,264.3 325.0 336.3 1,673.2 1,600.6 4.5%
Deferred outflows 42.6 58.9 17.1 29.6 59.7 88.5 (32.5)%

Total assets 2,008.6 1,972.5 643.4 659.5 2,622.7 * 2,601.8 0.8%
Long-term debt outstanding 862.4 873.7 86.7 93.3 949.1 967.0 (1.9)%
Other liabilities 196.2 213.2 161.7 161.1 328.6 * 344.1 (4.5)%
Deferred inflows 2.2 0.7 2.6 0.9 4.8 1.6 200.0%

Total liabilities 1,060.8 1,087.6 251.0 255.3 1,282.5 * 1,312.7 (2.3)%
Net position:

Net investment

in capital assets 598.1 578.7 303.9 312.7 902.0 891.4 1.2%

Restricted 310.9 271.0 2.7 2.7 313.6 273.7 14.6%

Unrestricted 38.8 35.2 85.8 88.8 124.6 124.0 0.5%
Total net positio $ 947.¢ $ 884.¢ $ 392.. $ 4042 $ 1,340 $ 1,289.C 4.0%

* Receivables and payables between actiéiessliminated in the Total Port column.

Total net position of the Airport increased by $6illion, or 7.1 percent, as a result of net ineoamd
capital grants. Net investment in capital assetseased $19.4 million, or 3.4 percent, as a result
increases in capital additions and constructiomding. Restricted net position increased by $38ilBon,
or 14.7 percent, primarily due to net income restd for debt service and construction. Unrestdatet
position increased by $3.6 million, or 10.2 percenimarily as a result of net operating income.

Total net position of Marine & Other decreased frtira 2017 balance by $11.8 million, or 2.9 percent,
primarily the result of a net loss for the yearfsef in part by capital grants. Net investmentapital
assets decreased $8.8 million, or 2.8 percent,gpilynas a result of normal capital asset deprexriat
Unrestricted net position decreased by $3.0 milbor3.4 percent, again primarily due to a net kasghe
year.

Several factors caused changes in net position¢Talbelow) to decrease $44.4 million from 2017.

Airport changes in net position increased $9.5iamnllwhen compared to the prior year due mainly to
increased operating revenues in 2018. Marine &Othanges in net position decreased $53.9 million
primarily due to lower operating revenues, higheerating expenses, and lower capital contributions
versus the prior year, partially offset by increahsenoperating revenues.



The Port of Portland
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
($ millions) Total
Percentage
Airport Marine & Other Total Port Change
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017  2017-2018
Revenues:
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 24286 2321 $ 508 $ 720 $ 2928 $ 304.1 B.7)%
Land sales 7.8 374 7.8 37.4 (79.1)%
Other 1.2 0.2 1.2 0.2 500.0%
Nonoperating revenues
Property tax revenue 12.1 11.6 12.1 11.6 4.3%
Interest revenue 4.8 4.9 34 29 8.2 7.8 5.1%
PFC revenue 38.1 37.7 38.1 37.7 1.1%
CFC revenue 15.6 16.1 15.6 16.1 (B3.1)%
Other nonoperating revenue 9.9 3.3 9.9 3.3 200.0%
Total revenues 300.5 290.8 85.2 127.4 385.7 418.2 (7.8)%
Expenses:
Operating expenses 2247 215.5 93.9 89.1 318.6 304.6 4.6%
Nonoperating expenses 22.6 31.4 5.3 5.6 27.9 37.0 (24.6)%
Total expenses 247.3 246.9 99.2 94.7 346.5 341.6 1.4%
Income (loss) before contributions
and transfers 53.2 43.9 (14.0) 32.7 39.2 76.6 (48.8)%
Capital contributions 10.3 9.9 1.6 9.0 11.9 18.9 (37.0)%
Transfers (out) in (0.6) (0.4) 0.6 0.4
Increase (decrease) in net posi $ 62.¢ $ 534 $ (118 $ 421 $ 511 $ 95.F (46.5)%

Total revenues for the Port decreased by approrign&32.5 million from the prior year. Total expes
increased approximately $4.9 million during the sgimeframe.

At the Airport, operating revenues increased by $8illion, or 4.3 percent, when compared to therpri
year; this was primarily due to increases in aérland concessions revenues. The increase of &bdut
million in operating expenses was primarily atttdhle to higher depreciation and outside servigpgrse
versus the prior year; this was partially offsetd®creased central services costs. Nonoperatipgnses
decreased $8.8 million, or 28.0 percent, as a reduhigher capitalized interest in 2018 (which seffs/
reduces interest expense), and costs related ¢éb dessolition recorded in 2017, offset partially tigher
revenue bond interest expense in 2018.

For Marine & Other, charges for services operategenues decreased $21.2 million from the prior,yea
primarily the result of $23.0 million in revenuecoeded from a terminated lease at the marine coettai
terminal in 2017, offset partially by higher intesdal rail shuttle revenues at Terminal 6 in 201&nd
sales revenue decreased $29.6 million from ther gear as a result of reduced industrial propesfes
During 2018, operating expenses increased $4.&mitlue to the impacts of higher environmental aatr
expenses, longshore labor expense, and centrategmosts; these increases were offset in largebga
lower cost of land sold expense.

Budgetary Highlights:

The Port’s budget for fiscal 2018 was adopted ey Blort Commission and certified by the Multhomah
County Tax Supervising and Conservation Commis§iBICC) in June 2017. Budget appropriations at
the Airport were adjusted during the year to rdflestablishment of a commercial paper program and t
pay related fees, to remove two budgeted Airporicbissues as a result of the new commercial paper
program, for increased expenditures for snow aadéenoval activity at the Airport during the wintand

for costs associated with the write-off of noncaled design costs in the terminal. Appropriagiamthe
budget for Marine & Other resources were adjustedeflect increased revenues associated with new
service at Terminal 6, proceeds from settlemenamfenvironmental insurance recovery claim, and to



The Port of Portland
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, continued

account for reimbursement revenue from the US Ai@uoyps of Engineers for equipment financings.
Marine & Other appropriations for expenditures warereased for higher costs associated with the new
service at Terminal 6, to allow for payment of atbogent fee associated with an environmental snsce
recovery claim, for unforeseen General Aviationaie@nd project cancellation costs at Hillsborog am
provide for non-cash budgetary impacts of accogntiecruals for environmental liabilities, including
natural resources restoration. While legally aalogovernment subject to governmental budgeting
requirements, the Port operates much like a busingth expenditure levels driven by business neaxd
utilizes the accrual basis of accounting. Revisitmreflect expenditure patterns are, therefoseyron

for an entity like the Port. As explained in Ndt¢o the financial statements, Oregon budget laffesrdin
certain situations, from accounting principles gafig accepted in the United States of America.

On a budgetary basis, Airport capital expenditurese $143.6 million, 57.8 percent below the $340.3
million budget, as the latest capital expansiongmm at the Airport got underway more slowly than
budgeted. Capital grants during the year were 3hillion, 30.8 percent below the budget of $14.9
million as a result of incurring fewer grant elitgbcosts than anticipated. Both operating reveraugs
operating expenditures tracked tightly againstlibdget. Airport operating revenues of $241.9 onilli
were 0.5 percent above the $240.7 million budg@perating expenditures of $108.2 million were 0.5
percent above the $107.6 million budgeted amoufither significant budgetary resource variances
included issuances under the Airport's new comragégaper program, which were lower than anticipated
as a result of lower capital expenditures.

Fiscal 2018 budgetary capital expenditures for @i Other were $13.3 million, 69.8 percent beltw t
budget of $44.1 million, largely due to timing dgdaand project deferrals. Capital grants for tharywere
$1.6 million, less than the budget of $4.4 milli@ue to incurring fewer grant eligible costs. Betigy
operating revenues for industrial development wgk8.9 million, or 52.0 percent, below the budget of
$26.7 million due to delays in the timing of indusst property sales. Budgetary operating expeneitu
were $5.3 million below budget for administratigimarily due to lower than anticipated outsidevasy
costs resulting from delays in timing of projectglanitiatives, as well as cost controls undertaliempart

of an organizational financial sustainability iative. Other environmental budgetary operating
expenditures were $7.4 million under budget, largel a result of delays in the timing of costs esded
with environmental liabilities in the Portland Harlsuperfund site.

Capital Assets:

At the end of fiscal 2018, the Port had over $liloh invested in a broad range of capital assefis
amount represents an increase (essentially adslitifiset by depreciation expense) of $76.8 millkensus
last year, as outlined in Table 3 (below).

Table @
Capital Asset
($ millions)
Total
Percentac
Airport Marine & Other Total Port Chang

201¢ 2017 201¢ 2017 201¢ 2017 2017-201:

Land $ 68.C $ 68.C% 834% 83.4 % 151.¢ $ 151.¢

Construction in progre 174.2 125.¢ 23.¢ 25.7 198.1 151.t
Total capital assets not being depreci 242.2 193.¢ 107.: 109.1 349.f 302.¢ 15.4%

Land improvemen 853.¢ 790.1 288.€ 281.2 1,142 1,071

Buildings and equipme 1,455.¢ 1,404.. 249.% 260.2 1,705.¢ 1,664.1
Total capital assets being depreci: 2,309.7 2,194.; 538.< 541. 2,848.( 2,735.¢ 4.1%
Less: accumulated depreciai (1,203.8 (1,123.7  (377.9 (375.8 (1,581.7 (1,499.5 5.5%
Total capital assets being depreciated 1,105.¢ 1,070.! 160.4 165.€ 1,266.: 1,236.. 2.4%
Total capital assets, I $ 1,348.0 $ 1,264.. % 267.1 $ 2745 $ 1,615.( $ 1,539.( 5.0%



The Port of Portland
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This year’'s major capital asset spending included:

Airport:
Terminal improvements - $59.9 million
Rental car facility construction - $24.0 million
Public parking and consolidated rental car facHi§22.0 million
Taxiway and runway rehabilitation and improvemer#21.2 million

Marine & Other:
Terminal 4 berth rehabilitation and improvemen$2-8 million
Industrial property improvements - $2.4 million
Crane and crane improvements - $1.3 million
Terminal 6 auto staging facility - $1.0 million

Please see Note 5 to the financial statements doe aetailed information of capital asset activity.

The Port’s 2019 capital budget estimates spendiaghar $259 million on capital projects at the Airp
and nearly $27 million in Marine & Other. Spendiag the Airport is primarily slated for terminal
improvements; a new public parking and consolidagedal car facility; pavement rehabilitation prcte

and aircraft loading bridge replacements. Thesgepts are budgeted to be funded by Airport opegati
revenues, federal grants, debt proceeds, PFC reseand CFC revenues. Capital spending for Ma&ine
Other is budgeted principally for dry docking theede Oregon, infrastructure improvements at marine
terminal and Rivergate facilities, industrial lamtiprovements, and general aviation airport runway
reconstruction. Funding for these projects is letield from operating revenues, property taxes, and
federal, state, and other grants.

Debt Administration:
At the end of 2018, the Port had over $888 miliimbhonds, commercial paper, contracts and loanalgay
outstanding. This is a decrease from the prior,y&saseen in Table 4 (below).

Table ¢
Outstanding Long-Term De
($ millions)
Total
Percentac
Airport Marine & Othe Total Por Chang

201¢ 2017 201¢ 2017 201¢ 2017 2017-201:

Pension bonc $ 62 $ 654 % 62 $ 65¢ (5.2)%
Revenue bon( $ 6452 $ 672.¢ 645.2 672.¢ (4.1)%
PFC revenue bon 127.¢ 135.¢ 127.¢ 135.0 (5.5)%
Contracts and loans paya 24.7 27.€ 24.7 27.¢ (11.6)%

$ 773.C $ 808.2 $ 86.7 $ 93.2 $ 859.1 $ 901.f (4.6)%

The outstanding amount of Airport long-term debtréased due to scheduled bond payments, offset
partially by issuances under a new Airport comnarpaper program. As of the end of fiscal 2018, th
Airport revenue bonds were rated AA- by Standard®&or’s, which is among the highest underlying
ratings for airport revenue bonds rated by thaihgahgency. The balance of PFC revenue bonds also
decreased as a result of regularly scheduled baych@nts.

In Marine & Other, the amount of outstanding loegat debt decreased as a result of scheduled payment
made on pension bonds, contracts and loans payable.

Please see Note 6 to the financial statements doe etailed information of long-term debt activity
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Economic Factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates:

As part of the Port’s strategic planning and businelanning process, regional, national, and global
economic trends and forecasts are reviewed andnasisuns regarding passenger, cargo, and population
growth are coupled with these trends and foredastsoduce the annual budget. As our region caesn

to grow, most business lines are projected to spawth in fiscal 2019. Fiscal 2019 airline passang
volumes are forecast to increase 2.7 percent dweffiscal 2018 budget to a new historic high of919.
million passengers. At the Port's Marine & Othacifities and business parks, we see strong gréavth
our auto business, strong demand for our indugiriberties, new business activity at Terminalrél aur
mineral bulk (soda ash and potash) tenants havee reigphificant investments to position them to take
advantage of trade growth resulting from economiawvgh in the region.

In the Port’'s 2019 adopted budget, total Port dpegaevenue is budgeted to increase about 9.0eperc
over 2018 results to approximately $329.1 milliargely as a result of revenues associated witleased

land sales, throughput revenue at Terminal 6, amHipg revenues. Total operating expenses (exududi
depreciation and the non-cash impacts of GASB 6Bemsion expense) are budgeted to increase by about
5.8 percent to approximately $205.0 million, refileg higher costs related to increased land sales,
longshore labor costs at Terminal 6, and increasddry and benefits costs, offset in part by lower
environmental expense accruals in 2019.

Operating revenues for the Airport are budgeteiddcease 2.2 percent to $247.4 million in the fis@l9
budget due primarily to parking and transportati@mtwork company revenues resulting from increased
passenger volumes in 2019. Airport operating egper{excluding depreciation and GASB 68 non-cash
pension expense) are budgeted to increase abopéefént to $132.9 million as a result of increasaddry
and benefits costs, outside services costs, aathaitcentral services costs.

In Marine & Other, operating revenues are budgetddcrease by 36.6 percent to $81.7 million, pritya
due to higher revenues for industrial land salesigdtion division dredging, and throughput at Tieah6
budgeted in fiscal 2019. Operating expenses (dikujudepreciation and GASB 68 non-cash pension
expense) are budgeted to increase by 5.7 perce$it2d million due to higher costs of property sold
resulting from more budgeted land sales, longsHab®r costs associated with increased activity at
Terminal 6, higher salary and benefits costs, aigtien insurance costs, offset in part by lower aedr
environmental expenses in 2019. Property taxedadgeted to comprise less than 1.0 percent of Port
resources on a legal budget basis.

Contacting the Port’s Financial Management:

This financial report is designed to provide useith a general overview of the Port’s finances.ydlu
have questions about this report or need additiinahcial information, contact the Port of Portlén
Controller’s Office, PO Box 3529, Portland, OR 9382
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

BALANCE SHEET
as of June 30, 2018

with comparative totals as of June 30, 2017

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled investments
Restricted cash and equity in pooled investments
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful actewf

$485,000 in 2018 and $212,000 in 2017 for &it@nd

$180,000 in 2018 and $349,000 in 2017 for k@& Other

Prepaid insurance and other assets
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and equity in pooled investments
Receivables
Total restricted assets
Land held for sale
Depreciable properties, net of accumulated degtien
Nondepreciable properties
Unamortized bond issue costs
Due from Airport
Other noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets
Deferred outflows of resources:
Deferred charges on refunding bonds
Deferred charges on pensions and OPEB
Cumulative decrease in fair value of hedgingvdeive
Total deferred outflows of resources
Total assets
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable and other accrued liabilities
Accrued wages, vacation and sick leave pay
Workers' compensation and other accrued ligslit
Total current liabilities (payable from cunteassets)
Restricted liabilities (payable from restriciesbets)
Current portion of long-term debt and other
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable
Contract retainage payable

Total restricted current liabilities (p&je from restricted assets)

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term environmental and other accruals
Long-term debt
Unearned revenue and other
Net pension and OPEB liability
Due to Marine & Other
Total noncurrent liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows
Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital and debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

2018 2017
Airport Marine & Other Total Total
$ 38,080 $ 47,462,291 $ 47,500,371 $ 36,391,524
110,152,416 206,857,337 317,009,753 313,769,341
73,839,620 73,839,620 76,145,788
16,583,620 11,828,525 28,412,145 25,276,599
4,321,219 2,499,127 6,820,346 6,659,050
204,934,955 268,647,280 473,582,235 458,242,302
399985, 2,728,553 402,564,538 436,256,370
10,578,731 10,578,731 13,568,343
410,414,716 2,728,553 413,143,269 449,824,713
57,280,912 57,280,912 61,661,577
1,105,863,635 160,412,841 1,266,276,476 1,236263
242,284,909 107,255,070 349,539,979 302,882,728
788,424 145,015 933,439 1,148,113
29,310,530 * *
1,686,228 517,454 2,203,682 3,330,149
1,761,037,912 357,650,375 2,089,377,757 2,054,894,543
22,571,834 22,571,834 25,220,991
14,146,018 7,091,584 31,237,602 54,059,388
5,864,000 5,864,000 9,202,000
42,882 17,091,584 59,673,436 88,482,379

$ 2,008,554,719 $ 643,389,239 $ 2,622,633,428 $ 2,601849,

$ 28,500,000 $ 46,288 $ 32,946,288 $ 4,231,403
2,122,502 27,151,818 49,294,320 33,008,137
52854, 5,266,566 10,820,811 13,369,377
3,124,104 4,524,424 7,648,528 7,382,970
59,320,851 41,389,096 100,709,947 57,991,887
338,768 38,370,768 36,290,686
16,476,516 16,476,516 16,360,939
16,563,717 16,563,717 21,648,700
2,428,619 2,428,619 1,845,463
73,839,620 73,839,620 4B6{B8
133,160,471 41,389,096 174,549,567 134,137,675
12(@98 47,605,532 60,303,619 75,243,133
795,499,965 82,232,012 877,731,977 926,475,795
45,345,708 26,673,422 72,019,130 71,854,027
42,547,957 50,508,217 93,056,174 103,193,124
29,310,530 * *
925,402,247 207,019,183 1,103,110,900 1,176,766,079
2,203,826 2,606,781 4,810,607 1,617,435
2,203,826 2,606,781 4,810,607 1,617,435
1,060,766,544 251,015,060 1,282,471,074 1,312,521,189
598,048,797 303,902,259 901,951,056 891,369,870
310,911,048 2,728,553 313,639,601 273,712,581
38,828,330 85,743,367 124,571,697 124,015,584
947,788,175 392,374,179 1,340,162,354 1,289,098,035
$ 2,008,554,719 $ 643,389,239 $ 2,622,633,428 $ 2,601849,

* Receivables and payables between activities larénated in the Total columns.

The accompanying notes are an intel
part of these financial statements.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

for the year ended June 30, 2018

with comparative totals for the year ended June 3017

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Land sales
Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries, wages and fringe benefits
Longshore labor and fringe benefits
Contract, professional and consulting services
Materials and supplies
Utilities
Equipment rents, repair and fuel
Insurance
Rent
Travel and management expense
Intra-Port charges and expense allocations
Cost of land sold
Other
Less expenses for capital projects
Total operating expenses, excluding deprieciat
Operating income before depreciation
Depreciation expense
Total operating expenses, including depririat
Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Property tax revenue
Passenger facility charge revenue
Customer facility charge revenue
Interest expense, net of capitalized constrogbieriod interest
of $17,301,142 in 2018 and $10,530,085 in 2@t Airport
Interest revenue

Other (expense) income, including loss on diapokproperties

Nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before contributions and transfers
Capital contributions and reversions
Transfers (out) in
Change in net position
Total net position - beginning of year
Total net position - end of ye

The accompanying notes are an integral
part of these financial statements.

2018 2017
Airport Marine & Other Total Total
$ 241,977,057 $ 50,761,895 292,738,952 304,075,436
7,830,309 7,830,309 37,429,282
10,119 1,204,411 1,214,530 163,699
241,987,176 59,796,615 301,783,791 341,668,417
53,006,225 43,974,574 96,980,799 96,330,712
4,106,598 4,106,598 779,744
25,947 22,634,772 56,894,719 35,583,353
6,005,588 1,688,128 7,693,716 9,110,754
11,566,831 3,570,010 15,136,841 13,348,615
1,434,655 2,020,989 3,455,644 2,721,649
1,841,819 955,815 2,797,634 3,826,226
2,634,380 2,634,380 2,308,778
3,702,878 1,214,229 4,917,107 4,553,943
30328 20,385,321 23,360,636
6,885,637 6,885,637 24,197,983
1,574,701 1,230,059 2,804,760 3,575,769
(1,520,900) (17,164,151) (18,685,051) (18,625,097)
132,257,065 73,751,040 206,008,105 201,073,065
100,781 (13,954,425) 95,775,686 140,595,352
92,410,076 20,183,339 112,593,415 103,547,969
224,667,141 93,934,379 318,601,520 304,621,034
17,320,035 (34,137,764) (16,817,729) 37,047,383
12,055,459 12,055,459 11,585,839
38,140,595 38,140,595 37,683,868
15,551,097 15,551,097 16,147,364
(18,863,735) (5,322,583) (24,186,318) (22%,498)
4,856,547 3,367,831 8,224,378 7,828,225
(3,791,903) 9,934,565 6,142,662 (6,58
35,892,601 20,035,272 55,927,873 39,546,013
53,212,636 (14,102,492) 39,110,144 76,593,396
10,338,147 1,616,028 11,954,175 18,858,752
(609,043) 609,043
62,941,740 (11,877,421) 51,064,319 95,452,148
884,846,435 404,251,600 1,289,098,035 1,193,645,887
$ 947,788,17 $ 392,374,17 $ 1,340,162,35 $ 1,289,098,03
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Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash received from customers
Cash payments to employees

THE PORT OF PORTLAND

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended June 30, 2018
with comparative totals for the year ended June 3017

Cash payments to suppliers and vendors
Cash payments (to) from other funds
Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Property taxes

Net cash provided by noncapital financing atitgi

Cash flows from capital and related financing atiés:

Capital expenditures
Sale of properties

Net proceeds from issuance of debt

Interest paid

Proceeds from passenger facility charges
Proceeds from customer facility charges
Principal payments and redemptions on l@ngitdebt
Contributions from governmental agencies
Cash transfers (to) from other Port divisiomet
Other, primarily nonoperating expense
Net cash (used in) provided by capital and eeldinancing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received
Investment activity:
Purchases

Proceeds from sales or maturities
Net cash provided by (used in) investing adgsit
Net (decrease) increase in cash asiil @equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents - end of

$

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to netlrcprovided

by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

$

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (ldss)et cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation expense
Cost of land sales

Non cash pension and OPEB expense
Amortization of unearned revenue
Non cash revenue for fixed assets received

Change in assets and liabilities:

Receivables and other current assets

Land held for sale

Accounts payable and accruals
Long-term environmental and other aats
Additions to unearned revenue
Net cash provided by operating activi $

Noncash investing, capital, and related financictgvaies:

Interest payable in future years

2018 2017

Marine & Other Total Total

Airport

$ 240,091,576 $ 8737435 $ 297,963,011 $ 337,718,549
(50,040,250) (40,792,881) (90,833,131)  (105,963,131)

(56308) (31,744,970) (87,995,274) (68,511,594)
(22,568)9 22,560,955
111,080 7,894,539 119,134,606 163,243,824
12,071,897 12,071,897 11,547,907
12,071,897 12,071,897 11,547,907

(162,669,385) (16,158,336)  (178,827,721)  (149,194,419)

(29,019) 103,261 74,242 181,311
28,500,000 28,500,000 264,284,067
(38,896,321) (6,942,090) (45,838,411) (36,351,395)
087189 37,900,189 36,183,847
16,008 16,116,008 15,542,977
(35,110,000) (4,974,103) (40,084,103) (39%3),
3,885 4,900,715 17,904,600 15,499,671
(609,043) 609,043
(3,468) 9,903,167 6,148,704 (6,521,111)
(145,548,149) (12,558,343) _ §186,492) 99,990,021
2,306,300 2,944,948 5,251,248 3,571,486

(197,127,201) (87,023,141)  (284,150,342)  (561,502,879)

229788 87,789,147 316,907,930 270,236,985
34,297,882 3,710,954 38,008,836 (287,694,408)
(10,200) 11,119,047 11,108,847 (12,862,6

48,280 36,343,244 36,391,524 49,304,180
38,08( $  47,46229 $  47,500,37  $_ 36,391,52
17,320,035 $ (34,137,764) $ (16,817,729) $ 37,047,383
92,410,076 20,183,339 112,593,415 103,547,969
6,885,637 6,885,637 24,197,983
3,492,470 5,203,764 8,696,234 11,576,744
(866,155)  2,119,754) (2,985,909) (7,434,491)
(7,401,100)
,7493050) (1,346,763) (5,095,813) (771,071)
(12,594,849)
3,237,580 11,256,782 14,494,371 4,729,824
(3,411,415) 676,169 (2,735,246) (1,058,845)
2,806,517 1,293,129 4,099,646 11,404,277
11124006 $  7,894,53° $ 119,134,60 $ 163,243,82

$ 576,035 $ 576,035 $ 717,495

The accompanying na@tesan integral
part of these finangtdtements.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Description of the Port and Summary of Significat Accounting Policies:

The Port

The Port of Portland (the Port) is a special mymatdistrict created by the Oregon State Legistatut is governed by a
nine-member Board of Commissioners who are appiibtethe Governor of the State; Commissioners séue year
terms without compensation. The Port facilitatesation and marine trade within the Port Distridfiultnomabh,
Clackamas, and Washington Counties), and its inflaespreads over a multi-state region. The Portscand operates
Portland International Airport (the Airport), whigbrovides the metropolitan area with commercialirer passenger
service, air cargo services, and general aviatemice. The Port also owns two general aviatiopaats, four marine
terminals, a dredge, six industrial and busineskspand develops land principally to support, emea and expand its
core transportation operations. Principal fundsogirces are charges to users, revenue bonds, ,graetest earnings,
passenger facility charges, customer facility ceargnd, to a lesser extent, property tax levlesactivities are carried
out by a staff of approximately 772 full-time eqalient persons.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and reporting policies of the Portfarm to accounting principles generally acceptethe United States
of America (GAAP) as applicable to proprietary fenaf local governments. The Governmental Accognftandards
Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting Hodyestablishing governmental accounting and fir@n@porting
principles. Accordingly, the Port utilizes the ag basis of accounting, whereby revenues aregrezed when earned
and expenses are recognized when incurred.

Intra-Port Charges and Expense Allocations

Labor and associated costs for services performyeashk functional area of the Port to another ame@st commonly by
administrative departments, are charged in thewatotg records as an expense to the receiver vicesrand as a credit
to expense to the provider of services. The amchatged includes labor, fringe benefits, and dwcated portion of
other costs, including materials and supplies,itieffl, contract services, insurance, rent and aségtien. All other
administrative department costs not charged inasner are allocated as overhead based on a fimwlving full
time equivalent positions, legal services rendeaed, operating expenses.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confoymvith GAAP requires management to make estimatad
assumptions that affect the reported amounts @tsissd liabilities and disclosure of contingerstets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the redainounts of revenues and expenses during thetirepperiod. Actual
results could differ from those estimates.

Operating Revenues and Expenses

Revenues and expenses that are earned or incuarety dhe course of normal business operationschssified as
operating. Revenues and expenses that are earneduored outside of the course of normal operatjancluding

interest income and expense, property tax reverustomer facility charges, and passenger faciligrges, are classified
as nonoperating.

Restricted Assets and Related Liabilities

Assets and related liabilities restricted to spegfirposes by state statute, bond indenture @ratke are segregated on
the balance sheet. These assets and liabilitepramarily restricted for construction and dehtvigg purposes. When
both restricted and unrestricted resources ardadaifor use, it is the Port’s policy to generatlynsider restricted assets
to be used first over unrestricted assets.

12



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

1. Description of the Port and Summary of Significat Accounting Policies,continued:

Land Held for Sale

Land held for sale includes costs of land acquoisitind development on property held for eventulal. shand held for

sale is stated at the lower of average cost orewizable value. Costs that are capitalized sbrfi acquisition and

development costs incurred to bring the land takdal condition, including interest. At closinglesaand related cost of
land are recorded as operating revenues and exgense

Properties and Depreciation

Properties, other than lease improvements acquigah termination of operating leases, are statedtoat less
accumulated depreciation, including capitalize@iri@st. Interest income earned on investments feoaexempt debt is
offset against capitalized interest expense. Rtegewith an individual purchase cost exceedin@®®6 with a useful life
exceeding one year are capitalized, and deprecjatuperties are depreciated over their estimatedulidives on a
straight-line basis. The useful lives generallygafrom 5 to 40 years for land improvements; 8Qgears for buildings,
building components, and terminals; and 2 to 15s/éar equipment. Normal maintenance and repaischarged to
operating expense as incurred; expenditures folomaglditions, improvements, infrastructure, andlaegments are
capitalized. The cost of assets retired or otherwiisposed of and related accumulated depreciat®eliminated from
the accounts in the year of disposal with the tegybain or loss credited or charged to nonopegattvenue or expense.

Amortization of Bond Issue Costs

Bond issue costs related to prepaid insurance @stsamortized over the life of the related deld agported as a
noncurrent asset on the balance sheet. The differbetween the reacquisition price and the neyiogramount of old
debt arising from defeasance and refunding traiwects amortized over the remaining life of thd debt or the life of
the new debt, whichever is shorter, and is repated deferred outflow of resources on the balaheet. Amortization is
included in interest expense. All other bond issgacosts are expensed as incurred.

Accrued Vacation and Sick Leave Pay

Vacation and sick leave pay are accrued as eaoraddst employees, based on length of past sewc& a maximum
number of hours per employee. Vacation and siakddiabilities are reduced when leave is taked, @mused portions
are paid off upon termination to the extent allovi@din Port policy.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue typically represents prepaid |damacing related to real property developmentjguts and
transactions and is generally amortized over tieedi the related lease. Lease terms generallyerfiom 5 to 55 years.
Unearned revenue is reported as a noncurrentitiabit the balance sheet.

Accounting for Contributions from Federal Government and Other

Capital grants and other contributions from govesntal agencies are recorded as net position where@gaOperating
grants are recorded as revenue when earned. lmasevements acquired upon termination of leasesirluded in
properties and credited to net position at estithéd# value at date of acquisition.

Property Taxes
Property taxes are used for capital and debt sepicposes. Property taxes are recorded as naimgerevenue in the

year levied. Property taxes are levied and atthelsean enforceable lien on property as of Julyldxes are payable in
three installments on November 15, February 15Mag 15.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Highly liquid investments (excluding restricted @stments) with a maturity of three months or lekgnvpurchased are
considered cash equivalents.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

1. Description of the Port and Summary of Significat Accounting Policies,continued:

Environmental Remediation Liabilities

The Port records future pollution remediation cabtt meet measurement criteria outlined in GAS&e®hent No. 49,
“Accounting and Financial Reporting for PollutioreiRediation Obligations.” Those criteria requireraal of pollution

remediation obligation amounts when a) one of aertdligating events occurs, and b) the amount lmanmeasonably
estimated. Obligating events include imminent exggament to public health or welfare or the envinent; violation of
a pollution prevention-related permit or licenseidence that the Port will be named as a respomgibity, or potentially
responsible party, for sharing costs; evidence that Port will be named in a lawsuit to compel joghtion in

remediation; and the Port commencing or legallygaiing itself to commence pollution remediatioBosts for pollution
remediation obligations are expensed unless experdi meet specific criteria which allow them to depitalized.
Capitalization criteria include preparation of asset for sale; preparation of property for use wtien property was
acquired with known or suspected pollution that wapected to be remediated; performing pollutiomediation that
restores a pollution-caused decline in servicetytthat was recognized as an asset impairment; aoglisition of
property, plant and equipment that have a futuerrstive use.

Passenger Facility Charges

Passenger facility charges (PFCs) are imposed pfamed passengers at the Airport. PFC revenuedsrded as
nonoperating revenue and is required to be uséthtbFederal Aviation Administration approved expiures for capital
projects or debt repayments eligible under fedegilation permitting the imposition of PFCs.

Customer Facility Charges

Customer facility charges (CFCs) are imposed onaterar transactions at the Airport. CFC revenmeaeicorded as
nonoperating revenue and is required by Port ondiedo be used to fund rental car-related projgectggrams and related
expenses.

Cash and Investments

The Port pools the majority of its cash and invesita and uses a controlled disbursement systemder ¢o maximize

earnings on available funds. Investments are dstatdair value based upon evaluated quotes fratagandent pricing
vendors. Oregon Revised Statutes, Chapter 294udrdpdinances, if more restrictive, authorize et to invest in

obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Goverrtragencies and instrumentalities, bankers' acceptaguaranteed by
an Oregon financial institution, repurchase agredmeand certain corporate indebtedness. In aadithe Marine &

Other activity is authorized to invest in a StateéDoegon local government investment pool and werimterest bearing
municipal bonds.

Budgets

The Port budgets all funds in accordance with #guirements of State of Oregon (State) law. Thé Bommission

authorizes appropriations for each fund, settirg lével by which expenditures cannot legally excapgropriations.

Total expenditures by department in the GeneradFoperating expenditures in the Airport Revenuad;wand capital

outlay and debt service in the other funds arddthels of control for each fund. The detail buddetument, however, is
required to contain more specific, detailed infotiora for the above mentioned expenditure categorigppropriations

lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

With the approval of the Port Commission, unexpgaédditional resources may be appropriated thrahghuse of a
supplemental budget. The original and supplemdnidbets require budget hearings before the pupliblications in

newspapers, and approval by the Commission for gtédrto the Multnomah County Tax Supervising anoh€ervation

Commission (TSCC). The TSCC conducts a reviewaantification of the original and certain supplenaudgets to
comply with State law. After TSCC certificationjch budgets are presented to the Port Commissiomdoption.

Original and supplemental budgets may be modifigdng the fiscal year by the use of appropriatit/assfers between
the legal categories. Such transfers require apptry the Port Commission. The Port adopted applemental budget
for the year ended June 30, 2018 and no supplehirrdgets for the year ended June 30, 2017.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

1. Description of the Port and Summary of Significat Accounting Policies,continued:

The Port budgets all funds on an accrual basist bedgetary reporting purposes, State law requinas charges for
services provided and certain expense allocatioos) one fund to another fund, be reported as feasto other funds,
rather than as operating or capital expenditures.

Transfers Between Activities

The Port’s policy is to fund certain general awatiMarine & Other activity) requirements from tAéport activity.
Amounts funded in this manner are reported asfgenen the statement of revenues, expenses, amgjeb in net assets.

Internal Receivables and Payables

Intra-Port receivables and payables between detvére eliminated in the total column of the betéasheet.

Prior Year Comparative Information

The basic financial statements include certainrprear summarized comparative information in tdxad not at the level
of detail required for a complete presentationanformity with generally accepted accounting phiabes. Accordingly,
such information should be read in conjunction it Port’s financial statements for the year entlete 30, 2017, from
which the summarized information was derived.

Reclassifications

Certain 2017 amounts have been reclassified tooconfo current year classification. These recfsgions have no
effect on previously reported net income, net parsjtor cash flows.

New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2015, the GASB issued Statement No. 75¢d6Anting and Financial Reporting for PostemploynmBeanefits
Other Than Pensions,” (GASB 75) effective for th@tB fiscal year beginning July 1, 2017. The esta¢nt establishes
standards for governmental employer recognitionasueement, and presentation of information abostgmployment
benefits other than pensions (OPEB), and also lestiab requirements for reporting information abfinéncial support
provided by certain nonemployer entities for OPHERttis provided to the employees of other entitie@ccounting
changes adopted to conform to the provisions of BAS have been applied retroactively, and fiscal720as been
restated. The impacts of the restatement are suzedan the following table (in thousands):

As previously

Balance Sheet reported As restated
Noncurrent assets:

Other noncurrent assets $ 3,495 $ 3,330
Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred charges on pensions and OPEB 53,688 54,059
Noncurrent liabilities:

Long-term environmental and other accruals 70,169 75,243
Net position:

Unrestricted 128,883 124,016

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Resition
Operating expenses:

Salaries, wages, and fringe benefits 116,510 116,355
Change in net position:
Total net position - beginning of year (July 1, 8p1 1,198,668 1,193,646
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

1. Description of the Port and Summary of Significat Accounting Policies,continued:

In March 2016, the GASB issued Statement No. 8teVbcable Split-Interest Agreements,” effective tlee Port’s fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2017. The statement estaddi accounting and financial reporting standasd&fevocable split-
interest agreements created through trusts in whidonor irrevocably transfers resources to anrnmdiary who
administers these resources for the unconditioeaéfit of a government and at least one other i@apf. The adoption
of this statement did not have a material effectrenPort’s financial statements.

In November 2016, the GASB issued Statement No:@8rtain Asset Retirement Obligations,” effectifioe the Port’s
fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018. This statermestablishes standards of accounting and finanepairting for certain
asset retirement obligations. The statement ésktegs criteria for determining the timing and patef recognition for a
liability and a corresponding deferred outflow afsources for asset retirement obligations. The Rocurrently
evaluating the effects this statement will haveatsifinancial statements.

In January 2017, the GASB issued Statement No'Raduciary Activities,” effective for the Port'sdtal year beginning
July 1, 2019. The statement establishes standdatscounting and financial reporting for fiduciagtivities. The Port is
currently evaluating the effects this statement alve on its financial statements.

In March 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 85nritbus 2017,” effective for the Port’s fiscal ydsaginning July 1,
2018. The statement addresses a variety of tapadgding issues related to blending componentsyrgbodwill, fair
value measurement and application, and pensionstaied postemployment benefits. The Port is cilyervaluating the
effects this statement will have on its financtatements.

In May 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 86, t&ierDebt Extinguishment Issues,” effective for thert’s fiscal
year beginning July 1, 2017. The statement estaddi standards of accounting and financial regpftn in-substance
defeasance transactions in which a government plaash and other monetary assets acquired with exikting
resources in an irrevocable trust to extinguisht.déthe statement also requires that any prepaigramce associated with
the debt be included in the net carrying amounthat debt and establishes additional disclosur@ireaents. The
adoption of this statement did not have a mateffaict on the Port’s financial statements.

In June 2017, the GASB issued Statement No. 87asés,” effective for the Port’s fiscal year begmgniuly 1, 2020.
The statement establishes standards of accoumihdjrancial reporting for leases by lessees assoles, and establishes
a single model for lease accounting based on thaditional principle that leases are financingshef right to use an
underlying asset. The Port is currently evaluatirgeffects this statement will have on its finahstatements.

In March 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 8&rt&in Disclosures Related to Debt, including DirBorrowings
and Direct Placements,” effective for the Port'scéil year beginning July 1, 2018. The statemefiheke debt for
purposes of disclosure in notes to financial stet@sn and establishes additional financial statendistlosure
requirements related to debt obligations of govemntst The Port is currently evaluating the effébts statement will
have on its financial statements.

In June 2018, the GASB issued Statement No. 89¢dAnting for Interest Cost Incurred before the Bhd Construction

Period,” effective for the Port’s fiscal year begjimg July 1, 2020. The statement establishes atic@urequirements for
interest cost incurred before the end of a con8tmieriod. The Port is currently evaluating #féects this statement
will have on its financial statements.

2. ldentifiable Activity Information:

The Airport is an identifiable activity in and dbelf, providing commercial airline passenger sayiir cargo services,
and general aviation services. The activities atsiqg Marine & Other are the Port's marine terntsnavhich load,
unload, and transfer commodities to and from trudksicars, barges, and ships; industrial develagmehich is
responsible for real estate development and rekdedces; environmental, which includes costsraaedveries associated
with environmental cleanup not directly attribuglib specific Port facilities, or which pertain ficilities for which
operations have been discontinued; navigation, vparforms maintenance dredging for the ColumbigeRthannel and
maintains a river level reporting system; genexahtson, which provides general aviation relief\§ees; engineering,
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

2. ldentifiable Activity Information, continued:

which provides drafting, environmental planning,rmi¢@ coordination, and engineering support for tRert; and
administrative departments (admin), which providpmort and services to the Port’s operating depants

Balance sheet information for Marine & Other is @vailable at the identifiable activity level.

Iddiable activity

information available for Marine & Other for theareended June 30, 2018 was as follows (in thou3ands

17

Marine Industrial General Engineering
Terminals DevelopmentEnvironmentalNavigation Aviation & Admin Total
Operating revenues $ 26,051 13,257 $ 15,700 $ 4,626 $ 163 $ 59,797
Operating expenses 31,932 13,317 $ 12,052 13,212 4,741 (1,502) 73,752
Depreciation expense 11,084 793 2,690 3,951 1,665 20,183
Operating (loss) income$ (16,965 (853) $ (12,052)$ (202)$ (4,066) $ $ (34,138)
Capital contributions ~ $ 323% 1,594 $ (301) $ 1,616
Properties activity:
Additions $ 6315 % 2,912 $ 3308 $ 1408 $ 1,746 $ 15,689
Deletions (9,590) (6,371) (30) (2,446)  (18,437)
3. Cash and Investments:
Following are the Port’s balance sheet classificetifor cash and investments:
Balance sheet classification: 2018 2017
Airport Marine & Other Total Total
Unrestricted cash and cash equivalents $ 38,080 $ 27296 $ 47,500,371 $ 36,391,524
Unrestricted equity in pooled investments 110,158,41 206,857,337 317,009,753 313,769,341
Restricted cash and equity in pooled investments 6463605 2,728,553 476,404,158 512,402,158
$ 583,866,10 $ 257,048,18 $ 840,914,28 $ 862,563,02
At June 30, 2018, the Port had the following casthiavestments and maturities for the Airport:
Investment Maturities (in years)
Less than 1 1-2 2-3 3-5 Value
U.S. Treasurie $ 31,453,38 $ 13,535,67 $ 5,526,99. $ 11,761,544 $ 62,277,60
U.S. Agencies 113,441,196 91,701,827 66,021,259 34,298,762 305,463,044
Municipal debt 4,662,251 2,617,746 1,383,041 1,416,302 10,079,340
Corporate indebtedness 48,304,154 21,860,803 15,691,647 11,083,102 96,939,706
$ 197,860,98 $ 129,716,05 $ 88,622,94 $ 58,559,71 474,759,69
Cash and cash equivalents 38,080
Restricted deposits held in trust acco 109,068,330
$_583,866,10_



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

3. Cash and Investmentsgontinued:

Following are the cash and investments and magarftir Marine & Other at June 30, 2018:

Investment Maturities (in years)

Less than 1 1-2 2-3 3-5 Value
U.S. Treasuries $ 3,458,006 2,173,306 $ 3,237,806 $ 6,890,112$% 15,759,224
U.S. Agencies 38,960,319 45,064,201 38,676,356 20,092,788 142,793,664
Municipal debt 2,731,224 1,533,519 810,208 829,693 5,904,644
Corporate indebtedness 16,636,839 12,806,423 9,192,429 6,492,667 45,128,358

$ 61,78638 $ 6157744 $ 51916,79 $ 34,305,26 209,585,89

State of Oregon local

government investment pool 40,413,046
Cash and deposits with
financial institutions 7,049,245
$ 257,048,18

Deposits with financial institutions include bankndand deposits. The total bank balance as showth@rbank
statements was $14,447,167. Of these deposit, 325 was covered by federal depository insuramce$44,197,167
was covered by collateral pledged by the Port'difigd depositories. In accordance with ORS 29@, ¢ollateral pledged
is held by the agent of the qualified depositorisgjesignated as subject to the Pledge Agreenwniekn the agent, the
qualified depositories, and the Oregon Office &f 8tate Treasurer (OST); and is held for the beaéthe OST on behalf
of the Port.

Fair value is defined in accounting standards aspttice that would be received to sell an assqtaid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margetticipants at the measurement date. Observaplds are developed
based on market data obtained from sources indepéndl the reporting entity. Unobservable inputs developed based
on the best information available about the assiomptmarket participants would use in pricing thesed. The

classification of securities within the fair valub®rarchy is based upon the activity level in tharket for the security
type and the inputs used to determine fair marktte; as follows:

Level 1 — Unadjusted quoted prices in active marka identical instruments.

Level 2 — Quoted prices for similar instruments dotive markets; quoted prices for identical or Emi
instruments in markets that are not active; and elddrived valuations in which all significant irtguare
observable.

Level 3 — Valuations derived from valuation techugg in which significant inputs are unobservable.

Not leveled — Cash and cash equivalents and thgo@r8hort-Term Fund investment pool are not medsate
fair value and, thus, are not subject to the falug disclosure requirements.

The Port’s investments are valued using evaluatedeg from independent pricing vendors. The tpiady vendors use a
variety of methods when pricing these securiti@s ithcorporate relevant observable market datarieesat an estimate of
what a buyer in the marketplace would pay for assgcunder current market conditions. All of tRert’'s investments at
June 30, 2018 are considered level 2.

To address interest rate risk and limit its expestwr fair value losses arising from rising interestes, the Port's
investment policy places restrictions on the méagiof the Port’s investment portfolio. Investrheraturities are limited
as follows:

Maturity Minimum Investment
Two years and under 55% of par value
Three years and under 75% of par value
Five years and under 100% of par value
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

3. Cash and Investmentsgontinued:

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) limit investmentsoiporate indebtedness to those rated P-1 or Aatber by Moody’s
Investors Service or A-1 or AA or better by Stamband Poor's Corporation or equivalent rating by aationally

recognized statistical rating organization. Paoxteistment policy on credit risk follows ORS requients. At June 30,
2018, all corporate indebtedness in the Port'ssiment portfolio met or exceeded these ratingsireouents.

Oregon Revised Statutes (ORS) limit investmentsnimicipal debt to those lawfully issued debt oliigias of the
agencies and instrumentalities of the State of @reand its political subdivisions that have a Idaegn rating of A or an
equivalent rating or better or are rated on thdeseent date in the highest category for short-temomicipal debt by a
nationally recognized statistical rating organiaati In addition, lawfully issued debt obligatioos the agencies and
instrumentalities of the States of California, Idamd Washington and political subdivisions of thestes are authorized
if the obligations have a long-term rating of AAam equivalent rating or better or are rated ons#itiement date in the
highest category for short-term municipal debt biyationally recognized statistical rating orgarimat Port investment
policy on credit risk follows ORS requirements. Atne 30, 2018, all municipal debt in the Portigestment portfolio
met or exceeded these ratings requirements.

A portion of the Port’s investments are investedamexternal investment pool, the Oregon Short-TEtmd (Fund).

Numerous local governments in Oregon, as well aseSigencies, participate in the Fund. The fdue/af the Port’s
position in the pool is the same as the value efgghol shares. The Fund is not registered withltl& Securities and
Exchange Commission as an investment company. SEkate’s investment policies are governed by Orelgenised

Statutes and the Oregon Investment Council (Councilhe State Treasurer is the investment officerthe Council.

Investments in the Fund are further governed byfgar guidelines issued by the Fund Board. Whiie Fund itself is
not rated, the Fund’s policies provide that the posite minimum weighted average credit qualityrmgtior the Fund'’s
holdings are the equivalent of AA for Standard Bodr’s.

As required by federal law, the Port held investtadolassified as restricted assets) with a parevaf $2,550,000 at June
30, 2018 and 2017, as collateral for certain acttiabilities for workers' compensation (Note 1®ederal law requires
these investments to be in only certain prescriteggbtiable securities.

Certain investment earnings are paid to the Airfrorn the Port General Fund pooled investments vdagned. At June
30, 2018 and 2017, approximately $353,468,000 &1id) 854,000, respectively, of the Airport's investits represent a
share of the Port’s total investments.

4. Receivables:

Port operations are concentrated within the awviaitiolustry for the Airport and the industrial profyemarket and marine
shipping industry for Marine & Other. Principalstamers in these industries are national airlitexsants of large Port
industrial properties, and international steamsinips/agents. Each of these principal customea$féxted by changes in
industry market and other economic conditions. Pugt evaluates the financial capacity of prospectwnd current
customers to determine their ability to pay amouti® on a timely basis. Various forms of collateracluding
irrevocable standby letters of credit and pledgesnfother related industry customers under a jaieement, are
obtained from certain customers, mainly for thepait, where these pledges encompass substantidiigae receivables.
Accounts receivable are monitored on an ongoingshasd allowances for doubtful accounts are eistaddl and
maintained. Total trade receivables for the awratindustry were approximately $24,400,000 at J8@ge 2018 and
$21,100,000 at June 30, 2017. Total trade reckisdbr the marine shipping industry were approxeta$2,500,000 at
June 30, 2018 and $1,600,000 at June 30, 2017l di@nts receivable for the Airport were approxieha$3,100,000 at
June 30, 2018 and $5,700,000 at June 30, 2017al Goant receivables for marine and other were @pprately
$1,400,000 at June 30, 2018 and $4,800,000 at 30ne2017. Other significant receivables includéeriest on
investments and a dredging contract.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

5. Propetrties:

Properties activity for the year ended June 3082@4s as follows:

Beginning Disposals & Completec Ending
Airport: Balances Additions Transfers Projects Balances
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Land improvements $ 790,120,748 $ (1,730,438) $ 65,500,796 $ 853,891,106
Buildings and equipment 1,404,127,690 (10,471,946) 62,194,721 1,455,850,465
Total capital assets being depreciated 2,194,288,4 (12,202,384) 127,695,517 2,309,741,571
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 420,345,852 $ 33,766,381 ,73@,438) 452,381,795
Buildings and equipment 703,408,458 58,693, (10,556,012) 751,496,141
Total accumulated depreciation 1,123,350 92,410,076 (12,286,450) 1,203,877,936
Total capital assets being depreciated, net701494,128 (92,410,076) 84,066 127,695,517 1,105,863,63
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 68,042,167 68,042,167
Construction in progress 125,744,977 176,176,305 76,97 (127,695,517) 174,242,742
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1931787 176,176,305 16,977 (127,695,517) 242,284,909
Airport capital assets, net $ 1,264,281,272 $ 83,765,23 101,043 3 $ 1,348,148,544
Marine & Other:
Capital Assets being depreciated:
Land improvements $ 281,220,418 $ (984,449) $ 8,304,139 $ 288,540,108
Buildings and equipment 260,159,588 (17,147,295) 651D 249,733,112
Total capital assets being depreciated 541,380,006 (18,131,744) 15,024,958 538,273,220
Less accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 186,494,785 $ 10,195,747 84,450) 195,706,082
Buildings and equipment 189,332,086 9,987,5 (17,165,381) 182,154,297
Total accumulated depreciation 375,826, 20,183,339 (18,149,831) 377,860,379
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 5585135 (20,183,339) 18,087 15,024,958 160,412,841
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 83,417,483 83,417,483
Construction in progress 25,678,100 13,361,862 (173,41 (15,024,958) 23,837,587
Total capital assets not being depreciated 1095835 13,361,862 (177,417) (15,024,958) 107,255,070
Marine & Other capital assets, net $ 274,648,718 $ 2BHT) $ (159,330) $ $ 267,667,911

The ordinances authorizing the issuance of Airpewvenue and PFC revenue bonds do not conveydithe tortgage the
Airport or any part thereof; however, the Port aueets not to encumber or dispose of Airport prapsrother than as
specifically permitted in the ordinances and intaiergrant agreements. In Marine & Other, the Rag granted a lender
a first lien on two watercraft used by its navigatactivity as security for related loans.

The Port leases to others certain land, buildiagd, equipment at various locations for terms rag@iom 2 to 92 years.
All leases are accounted for as operating leaSests of properties leased at June 30, 2018 indlatleve are:

Airport Marine & Other Total Port
Land and improvements $ 4,446,566 $ 31,420,645 $ 35,847,2
Building & equipment 695,052,835 41,798,523 736,858,35
699,499,401 73,219,168 772,718,569
Accumulated depreciation (439,705,653) (33,393,283) 73{@98,936)
$ 259,793,74 $ 39,825,88 $ 299,619,63
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

5. Properties continued:

Minimum future rentals receivable on noncancelaiperating leases for the five succeeding fiscatyead thereafter
are:

Airport Marine & Other Total Port

2019 $ 49,728,000 $ 16,694,000 $ 66,422,000

2020 46,653,000 13,703,000 60,356,000

2021 24,700,000 13,363,000 38,063,000

2022 19,015,000 10,677,000 29,692,000

2023 13,720,000 9,447,000 23,167,000
Thereafter 69,404,000 135,132,000 204,536,000

Total $ 223,220,00 $ 199,016,00 $ 422,236,00

Contingent rental revenues are included in opegatévenues, primarily for Airport terminal area epaand were as
follows in 2018 and 2017:

Airport Marine & Other Total Port
2018 $ 75,500,000 $ 4,200,000 $ 79,700,000
2017 $ 72,400,000 $ 4,600,000 $ 77,000,000
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

6. Long-Term Debt:

At June 30, 2018, long-term debt consisted of thiewing:

Limited Tax Pension bond Pension
2002 Series (issued in fiscal 2002, original is354,952,959
7.36% to 7.41%, due serially through fiscal z $ 1,734,398
6.85%, due serially from fiscal 2020 througttdis202¢ 37,320,000
6.6%, due fiscal 20: 6,205,000
2005 Series (issued in fiscal 2006, original issp@,230,000
4.859%, due fiscal 20z 2,085,000
5.004%, due fiscal 20 12,995,000
Portland International Airport revenue bonds:
Series Eighteen (issued in fiscal 2008, origisalie $138,890,000
variable interest rate
currently 1.60%, due fiscal 2C
currently 1.58%, due fiscal 2C
Series Twenty (issued in fiscal 2011, originaliss$157,050,00C
5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2(
3.0% to 5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2
4.25%, due fiscal 20-
Series Twenty-One A and B (issued in fiscal 2@iiginal issue $56,770,001
5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2019
Series Twenty-One C (issued in fiscal 2012, oabissue $27,685,00(
4.375% to 5.0%, due serially through fiscal Z
Series Twenty-Two (issued in fiscal 2015, origiisale $90,050,00(
4.0% to 5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2
5.0%, due fiscal 20-
5.0%, due fiscal 20-
Series Twenty-Three (issued in fiscal 2015, oagissue $109,440,00!
5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2(
5.0%, due fiscal 20:
Series Twenty-Four (issued in fiscal 2017, origisalie $233,240,000):
5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2(
5.0%, due fiscal 20:
5.0%, due fiscal 20:
Passenger Facility Charge revenue bc
Series 2011A (issued in fiscal 2012, original &$#5,670,000
3.0% to 5.5%, due serially through fiscal 2
Series 2012A (issued in fiscal 2013, original &$87,725,00
variable interest rate
currently 2.56%, due fiscal 2025
Series 2012B (issued in fiscal 2013, original &s$25,070,000
5.0%, due serially through fiscal 2(
Portland International Airport commercial paj
Series B (issued in fiscal 20:
1.60%, due fiscal 20:
Series C (issued in fiscal 20:
2.20%, due fiscal 20:

Airport
Revenu

36,830,000
36,835,000

67,055,000
19,230,000
16,640,000

8,210,000
27,685,000
41,695,000
21,245,000
27,110,000

86,190,000
23,250,000

113,110,000

52,770,000
67,360,000

Passenge
Facility Charg
Revenu

$ 67,300,000

57,195,000

3,330,000

Commercie
Pape

$ 14,800,000

13,700,000

Totals, including $1,886,618, $29,445,000880,000, and $28,500,C
respectively, due within one y $ 60,339,39

$ 645,215,00

$ 127,825,00

$ 28,500,00
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

6. Long-Term Debt, continued:

City of Portland, local improvement district indtaént payment contract (issued in fiscal 2003,inabamount
$10,189,218), 5.32%, payable in monthly installmeanging from $53,476 due on July 1, 2018 to $5b @ue
on April 1, 2023, including $660,507 due within oyear

State of Oregon Department of Transportation, Mhdtial Transportation Funds loan (issued in fis€aI®
original amount available $2,000,000), 0.0%, pagablannual installments of $200,000 due March281.9
through March 31, 2021, including $200,000 due initine year

State of Oregon Department of Transportation, Mhdtlal Transportation Funds loan (issued in fis€dl12
original amount available $7,427,000), 0.0%, pagablannual installments of $742,700 due July 1.920
through July 1, 2022

State of Oregon Business Development Departmerti@pgublic Works Fund loan (issued in fiscal 2009,
original amount available $8,700,000), 3.00% td%Q payable in annual instaliments ranging from%332
due December 1, 2018 to $573,262 due December3D, 2tcluding $379,332 due within one year

Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, (issuedistal 2013, original amount $15,100,000), 4.5%gtde
in monthly installments ranging from $73,947 duegAst 1, 2018 to $115,011 due June 1, 2028, inofudin
$905,901 due within one year

Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, (issuedistal 2014, original amount $2,303,000), 2.84%ygble
in monthly installments ranging from $34,047 duegBst 1, 2018 to $35,193, due October 1, 2019, dict
$413,930 due within one year

Total, including $2,559,670 due within oner

Contracts and
Loans Payable
at June 30, 2018

$ 3,461,397

600,000

2,970,800

6,036,263

11,065,255

519,260

$ 24,652,97

Future debt service requirements on bonds, costeaal loans payable for the five succeeding figeats and in five year

increments thereafter are:

Airport
Passenger Facility
Revenue Bonds Charge Revenue Bonds Commercial Paper Marine & Other
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2019 $ 29,445,000 28,817,241 % 7,830,000 $ 4,978,006 $ 28,500,000 $ 59,458 $ 4,446,288% 6,813,773
2020 26,265,000 27,763,845 8,105,000 4,778,332 5,276,106 6,741,857
2021 30,670,000 26,780,175 8,505,000 4,570,411 7,991,484 4,284,447
2022 32,175,000 25,596,400 8,930,000 4,352,084 8,574,443 3,870,282
2023 29,470,000 24,371,562 9,370,000 4,122,940 9,200,364 3,408,530
2024-2028 133,380,000 104,620,888 45,250,000 15,716,030 47,845,094 8,769,854
2029-2033 89,660,000 79,486,850 39,835,000 4,421,201 1,658,594 132,233

2034-2038 88,795,000 56,710,562
2039-2043 106,350,000 31,693,600
2044-2048 79,005,000 11,021,875

$ 645,215,000$% 416,862,998% 127,825,000$% 42,939,004 $ 28,500,000 $ 59,458 $ 84,992,373% 34,020,976
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

6. Long-Term Debt, continued:

Changes in long-term debt on the balance she¢tbdéoyear ended June 30, 2018 were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balances Increases Decreases Balances
Airport:
Long-term debt outstanding $ 808,150,000 $ (35,110,000) $ 773,040,000
less: current portion of long-term d (35,110,00C $ (37,275,00C 35,110,00 (37,275,00C
Unamortized bond issue premium 64,372,448 (4,637,483) 59,734,965
Long-term dek $ 837,412,44 $ (37,275,00C $ (4,637,483 $ 795,499,96
Marine & Other:
Long-term debt outstanding $ 89,966,476 $ (4,974,103) $ 84,992,373
less: current portion of long-term debt (4,231,40%) (4,446,288) 4,231,403 (4,446,288)
Long-term bond interest payable 3,328,274 576,035 (2,218,382) 1,685,927
Long-term portion outstandil $ 89,063,34 $ (3,870,253 $ (2,961,082 $ 82,232,01

In addition, at June 30, 2018 and 2017, the Past reaorded $15,785,140 and $17,303,181 respectivetiin the
Airport activity, for the difference between thecguisition price and the net carrying amount &imded bonds, which is
recorded as a deferred outflow of resources omdfence sheet.

CONTRACTS, LOANS AND PENSION BONDS
Contracts and loans in Marine & Other are payatimfrevenues of the Port, including existing prop&ax levies.

Limited Tax Pension Bonds were issued to fund the’'® estimated unfunded actuarial accrued ligbiis of April 1,
2002 (Note 8). These bonds are backed by a plefitfes full faith and credit of the Port’s Marine @ther activity, and
debt service is payable from Marine & Other revenuecluding existing property tax levies. Additad property taxes
may not be levied for debt service on these bori@isnds maturing on June 1, 2025 are redeemableeatption of the
Port on or after June 1, 2007 at par, in wholengrdrt, by lot, on any date up to June 1, 2025nd8anaturing on June 1,
2028 are subject to mandatory redemption, at pér o maturity, in part, by lot, beginning Jung2D20, and on each
June 1 thereafter. Interest for certain of the2litnited Tax Pension Bonds is payable only at migtu

Limited Tax Pension Bonds were also issued to fthrd Port's estimated unfunded actuarial accruehilibp as of
October 1, 2005 (Note 8). These bonds are backea fdedge of the full faith and credit of the PoiMarine & Other
activity, and debt service is payable from MarineOfher revenues, including existing property taxds. Additional
property taxes may not be levied for debt servicghese bonds. These bonds are subject to optiedamption by the
Port, in whole or in part, on any date, at a pecgal to the greater of par or a discounted vadsedefined. Bonds
maturing on June 1, 2020 are subject to mandatmgmption, at par, prior to maturity, in part, begng June 1, 2015,
and on each June 1 thereafter. Bonds maturingioa I, 2028 are subject to like mandatory redemptieginning June
1, 2021, and on each June 1 thereafter.

PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT REVENUE BONDS

Port Ordinance No. 155, enacted November 10, 1&7d Ordinance No. 323, enacted October 9, 1988, aadisequently
amended (Ordinances), authorize the issuance dfRdrnternational Airport Revenue Bonds (Airpmtenue bonds) to
pay the costs of acquiring and constructing Air@amtl other Port improvements. Port Ordinance I28.f8rther restricts
sales of Airport revenue bonds except for the psepof paying the costs of construction of additicansion, and
improvements at the Airport and the costs of adtjpisand construction of general aviation airporBoth Ordinances
also allow for the issuance of refunding bonds.e Tévenue bonds are not in any manner or to argnes general
obligation, a lien on tax revenues of the Portaotharge upon any revenues or property of the mutrtspecifically
pledged thereto. The proceeds of all such revepneds issued to date have been deposited in faicdsints) designated
for, and have been used for, Airport purposes only.
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6. Long-Term Debt, continued:

These Ordinances require that Airport revenuescstis of operation and maintenance be accounteih fan Airport
revenue fund. Any excess of revenues over cobey dhan depreciation is to be credited in theofeihg order for uses
specified in Ordinance No. 155:

e General account for payment to an Airport revenaadbfund to provide for the punctual payment of dbon
interest and principal.

» General account for all other permitted uses.

Proceeds from sales of bonds not expended for alievacquisitions or construction shall be usedrémayment of
bonds.

These Ordinances established debt service reseceaiats in an Airport revenue bond fund to accuteuthe maximum
debt service requirements, as defined in the Ondies, for any future fiscal year for all outstamgdbonds. Debt service
reserve insurance may be substituted for any podfdhe bond reserve requirement. For all outktepAirport revenue
bonds, the bond reserve requirement has been met.

Section 16(ii) of Ordinance No. 155 and SectiorobOrdinance No. 323 further stipulate that defimed revenues in
each fiscal year must equal at least 130 percedefified debt service requirements. The Airpos &@mplied with this
provision of the Ordinances for the years ende@ B 2018 and 2017.

On July 1, 2015, ten year contracts with majoriraricustomers became effective in which the aislihave provided
financial guarantees sufficient to meet the neenexes requirement for airline supported activitgaparily airfield and
terminal operations. Net revenues of other adtisjtprimarily parking, air cargo, and a portiorreftal car operations are
neither guaranteed nor limited to specified lewslthese contracts. The contracts also contasnanal revenue sharing
provision through June 30, 2025 in which fees gnaiory airlines are discounted $6,000,000 annualiyre annual
discount is subject to certain 1) reductions, ¢aggnt on the Port managing operating expensesidfimed target level,
and 2) increases, contingent on Airport coveragje taresholds. The discount amount was incre&se$i4, 754,434 for
fiscal 2018 and by $4,463,809 for fiscal 2017.

Series Twenty-Four bonds maturing on or before Julg027 are not subject to optional redemptiorpid maturity.
Series Twenty-Four bonds maturing on or after Iyl028 are redeemable at the option of the Pouraafter July 1,
2027 at 100 percent of the principal amount pluswsed interest.

Series Twenty-Three bonds maturing on or beforg JuR025 are not subject to optional redemptidorpo maturity.
Series Twenty-Three bonds maturing on or after 1ul®026 are redeemable at the option of the Rodraafter July 1,
2025 at 100 percent of the principal amount pluswed interest.

Series Twenty-Two bonds maturing on or before Jylp024 are not subject to optional redemptionrpidomaturity.
Series Twenty-Two bonds maturing on or after Jylpd25 are redeemable at the option of the Poxraafter July 1,
2024 at 100 percent of the principal amount pluswsed interest.

Series Twenty-One C bonds maturing on or befong IuP021 are not subject to optional redemptidorpio maturity.

Series Twenty-One C bonds maturing on or after Jul®022 are redeemable at the option of the Rodrafter July 1,
2021 at 100 percent of the principal amount pluswed interest.

Series Twenty-One B bonds are not subject to retlemprior to maturity.

Series Twenty bonds maturing on or before JulyGR02are not subject to redemption prior to maturiSeries Twenty

bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2021 are redéémat the option of the Port, at par, in part|dty on or after July 1,
2020.
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Series Nineteen bonds maturing on or before JuBD18 are not subject to redemption prior to maturBSeries Nineteen

bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2019 were adeartunded and defeased during fiscal 2015 by migpgroceeds from

the Series Twenty-Three bonds in an irrevocablst tiith an escrow agent. As a result, the trusbant assets and the
liability for the defeased bonds are not includedhie financial statements. At June 30, 2018, FXB,000 of the Series
Nineteen defeased debt was still outstanding.

Series Eighteen variable rate demand bonds beiaterest rate that is generally reset weekly byasketing agents, and
cannot exceed 12.0 percent. Payments of prineipdlinterest on the Series Eighteen bonds andutehg@se price of

Series Eighteen bonds that are subject to optimnalandatory purchase and not remarketed will halga by draws on

an irrevocable direct pay letter of credit. Sefigghteen bonds are redeemable at the option oPtng at par, prior to

maturity, in whole or in part, by lot, on any busiis day. In the event that Series Eighteen bamdsa remarketed and
the irrevocable direct pay letter of credit is dnampon, the draw will constitute a liquidity advaniy the letter of credit

bank. The Port must repay the liquidity advancer@term of three years at a variable rate oféstethat increases over
time, reaching a maximum rate of the greater offélteral funds rate plus 2.5 percent, or the bapkise rate plus 2.0

percent.

All Airport revenue bonds principal and interest gayable solely from revenues derived from theratfn and related
services of the Airport.

PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT PASSENGER FACILITY BARGE REVENUE BONDS

Port Ordinance No. 395-B, enacted June 10, 1999 0€Hmed the issuance of Portland Internationabpgit Passenger
Facility Charge Revenue Bonds (PFC revenue bormlg)aly the costs of construction of certain Fedévahtion
Administration approved PFC projects. The PFC meeebonds are backed by a pledge and assignmé@m@fevenues.
The PFC revenue bonds are not in any manner ant@xent a general obligation, a lien on tax res=snof the Port, or a
charge upon any other revenues or property of trerot specifically pledged thereto. The proceefdsll PFC revenue
bonds issued to date have been deposited in fadsnts) designated for, and have been usedriscibed purposes
only.

Ordinance No. 395-B established a debt servicevesscount in an amount equal to the maximum drohelat service.
The reserve account was fully funded from PFC bprateeds. Ordinance No. 395-B requires that PR@niges be
accounted for in a PFC fund and used for, in oodggriority, payments into a PFC bond fund to pde/for payment of
PFC bond interest and principal, payments intordserve account, any required payments into amatidins account,
any required payments into an obligations reseceeant, and then to a PFC capital account. Th#atagzcount may be
used to pay costs of construction, additions, imeneents, repairs to, or extensions of approved pefects or be used
for any other lawful Port purpose to the extentnited by PFC regulations. Until so applied, antsun the capital
account are pledged to payment of and subjectlienaand charge in favor of registered owners & BFC revenue
bonds.

In connection with the PFC revenue bonds, the Rastalso covenanted to comply with PFC laws andlaéigns, noise
regulations, and to manage the PFC program sorénadining PFC authority (as defined in Ordinance 88b-B) less
contractual commitments, shall exceed 105 perdetiéfined unpaid debt service.

The Series 2012A variable rate bonds were issuéltkifiorm of index bonds bearing an interest rlat¢ is generally reset
weekly based on an applicable spread of 63.5 lpmsdigs plus 70 percent of 1 month LIBOR, and carexateed 12.0
percent. The Series 2012A bonds have a maturity ofJuly 1, 2024 and are subject to mandatorkirsinaccount
payments prior to maturity. The Series 2012A bowese directly purchased by a single buyer for mtial purchase
period ending June 1, 2020. Series 2012A bondseateemable at the option of the Port, at par,rggomaturity, in
whole or in part. At the end of the initial purslegperiod, the Port may repurchase the outstarfings at par, or redeem
the bonds in installments over a three year pewidl an interest rate based on the greater of thmeprate plus 1.0
percent, the federal funds rate plus 2.0 percert,Gpercent.

Series 2012B bonds are not subject to redemption far their stated maturities.
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Series 2011A bonds maturing on or before July 212ére not subject to optional redemption priomaturity. Series
2011A bonds maturing on or after July 1, 2022 aeemable at the option of the Port on or aftey ul2021 at 100
percent of the principal amount plus accrued irstere

PFC revenue bonds principal and interest are paysddély from PFC revenues.
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT COMMERCIAL PAPER

Port Ordinance No. 463-CP, enacted November 8, ,281thorized the issuance of Portland Internatiétigdort Third
Lien Commercial Paper Notes (commercial paper)pfa$300 million aggregate principal amount outdiag at any
one time to pay, refinance, or reimburse the Rarttfe payment of costs of constructing, renovataugyuiring, equipping
and installing improvements at the Airport, to gagts of issuing commercial paper, and for anyrdtheful purposes of
the Port. Commercial paper is issued pursuanethi@ 6B of Port Ordinance 323 and is payablelgdiem the defined
net revenues of the Airport that are availableh Third Lien Obligation Fund.

In fiscal 2018, the Port issued Series B and Sé&Eiesmmercial paper to fund the costs of constngctmprovements at
the Airport and to pay interest on maturing comnangaper. Commercial paper outstanding totale8l 520,000 at June
30, 2018. Commercial paper is included in curpartion of long-term debt on the balance sheet.

DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS
At June 30, 2018, the Airport had the following ey derivative instruments outstanding:

Notional  Effective Maturity

Item Type Objective Amount Date Date Terms Fair Value

A Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changesin $ 3,737,500 7/1/2005 7/1/2025 Pay 5.1292%$  (275,000)
rate swap cash flows on the receive 68% 1
2008 Series 18 bonds month LIBOR

B Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changesin $ 3,737,500 7/1/2005 7/1/2025 Pay 5.1339%$  (275,000)
rate swap cash flows on the receive 68% 1
2008 Series 18 bonds month LIBOR

C Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changes in $32,595,000 7/1/2006 7/1/2026 Pay 4.9356%% (2,567,000)
rate swap cash flows on the receive 68% 1
2008 Series 18 bonds month LIBOR

D Pay-fixed interest Hedge of changes in $32,595,000 7/1/2006 7/1/2026 Pay 4.9403%$ (2,567,000)
rate swap cash flows on the receive 68% 1
2008 Series 18 bonds month LIBOR

At the inception of each interest rate swap agregnbe fixed rate on each of the swaps was offketasuch that the
Airport received an up-front payment; for derivatilnstruments A, B, C, and D, collectively, the gairt received three
equal up-front payments totaling $9,293,538. Ashseach swap is comprised of a derivative instntmen at-market
swap, and a companion borrowing instrument reptedeny the upfront payment. The fair value of tlegivatives was
negative $5,864,000 at June 30, 2018 and is redootethe Airport's balance sheet as a noncurrediltiy; the
unamortized balance of the borrowing is recordedtton Airport's balance sheet as a restricted ctirliability of
$496,838 and a noncurrent liability of $1,439,704w@ne 30, 2018. Hedge accounting is applied ¢odérivatives, and
accordingly, the cumulative change in fair valuetloé derivatives (at-market interest rate swapsjewecorded as
deferred outflows of $5,864,000, which is a deceezs$3,338,000 from the June 30, 2017 amount.

The fair values of the at-market interest rate saae estimated using the zero-coupon method. nfdibod calculated
the future net settlement payments required bysth@ps, assuming that the current forward ratesiémdly the yield
curves correctly anticipate future spot interes¢sa These payments are discounted using therafast implied by the
current yield curves for the hypothetical zero-amuponds due on the date of each future net settieon the swaps.
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Credit risk. The Airport has two separate counterparties ties¢ interest rate swaps. To minimize its exposutess
related to credit risk, it is the Port's policydnter into interest rate swaps with counterpastibch have demonstrated
experience in these types of financial instruments either 1) rated in one of the top three ratamggories by at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies, or 2) willlateralize in accordance with all statutory requients. The June 30,
2018 credit rating for each of the counterpartseas follows:

Derivative Instrumet Counterparty Credit Ratil
Derivative A and ( A+ / Aa3
Derivative B and D AA- [ Aa2

Interest rate swaps with positive fair values aqgosed to credit risk; interest rate swaps withatieg fair values are not
exposed to credit risk. At June 30, 2018, norghefAirport’s interest rate swaps were exposededitrisk.

Interest raterisk. The Airport is exposed to interest rate riskitsrpay-fixed, receive 68% of 1 month LIBOR intereste
swaps. As 1 month LIBOR decreases, the Airposispayment on the swaps increases; this is offdestantially by
decreases in the Airport’s interest payments orbtrels.

Basis risk. The variable rate debt hedged by the Airport'sragerate swaps A, B, C, and D are variable rateatel

obligation (VRDO) bonds that are remarketed weekhe Airport is exposed to basis risk on its pixed interest rate
swap derivative instruments that are hedging th®®@monds, because the variable rate payments extéiy the Airport
on these derivative instruments are based on eoratalex other than the interest rates the Airpays on the VRDO
bonds. At June 30, the weighted-average intea¢stan the Airport's VRDO bonds is 1.590 percehiler68 percent of 1
month LIBOR is approximately 1.360 percent.

Termination risk. The Airport or its counterparty may terminateiaterest rate swap if the other party fails to perf
under the terms of the contract. In addition, shap may be terminated if the Airport or a swapnterparty's rating
drops below BBB- / Baa3. At termination, the Airbmay owe a termination payment if there is aireal loss based on
the fair value of the terminated interest rate swap

Derivative instruments A, B, C and D require thephit to post collateral in the event that its $&nd & Poors credit
rating drops below A-. The collateral posted id#in the form of cash or U.S. Treasury securitiethe amount of the

negative fair value of the interest rate swap. Ahport's credit rating is AA- at June 30, 201Betefore, no collateral
has been posted for these derivative instruments.

At June 30, 2018, the Airport had the following éstment derivative instruments outstanding:

Notional  Effective Maturity

Item Type Amount Date Date Terms Fair Value
E Pay-fixed interest $34,317,000 7/1/2009 7/1/2024 Pay 4.975%, $ (2,187,000)
rate swap receive 68% 1
month LIBOR
F Pay-fixed interest $22,878,000 7/1/2009 7/1/2024 Pay 4.955%, $ (1,431,000)
rate swap receive 68% 1
month LIBOR

At the inception of each interest rate swap agregnbe fixed rate on each of the swaps was offketasuch that the
Airport received an up-front payment; for derivatiinstruments E and F, the Airport received an roptf payment
totaling $5,453,000. As such, each swap is com@rif a derivative instrument, an at-market swago, @ companion
borrowing instrument represented by the upfrontnparyt. The fair value of the derivatives was nega$3,618,000 at
June 30, 2018 and is recorded on the Airport'srzaasheet as a noncurrent liability; the unamadtikalance of the
borrowing is recorded on the Airport’'s balance $teesea restricted current liability of $598,930 andoncurrent liability
of $1,478,316 at June 30, 2018. In fiscal 2018,2009A PFC variable rate bonds hedged by deratistruments E
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and F were refunded; therefore, for accounting &ndncial reporting purposes, these derivatives ewasidered
investment derivative instruments. Accordinglye thecrease in fair value of the swaps of $2,548¢i0ihg fiscal 2018
was recorded in interest revenue on the statenfieavenues, expenses, and changes in net position.

The fair values of the at-market interest rate saa@ estimated using the zero-coupon method. nidthod calculated
the future net settlement payments required bystips, assuming that the current forward ratesiéehdy the yield
curves correctly anticipate future spot interet¢ga These payments are discounted using theragst implied by the
current yield curves for the hypothetical zero-cmuponds due on the date of each future net settieon the swaps.

Credit risk. The Airport has two separate counterparties lies¢ interest rate swaps. To minimize its expoButess
related to credit risk, it is the Port's policydnter into interest rate swaps with counterpastibich have demonstrated
experience in these types of financial instruments either 1) rated in one of the top three ratiggories by at least two
nationally recognized rating agencies, or 2) willlateralize in accordance with all statutory requients. The June 30,
2018 credit rating for each of the counterpartieas follows:

Derivative Instrumet Counterparty Credit Ratil
Derivative E A+ / Aa3
Derivative F A-/ A3

Interest rate swaps with positive fair values aqgosed to credit risk; interest rate swaps withatieg fair values are not
exposed to credit risk. At June 30, 2018, norghefAirport’s interest rate swaps were exposededitrisk.

Basisrisk. The variable rate debt hedged by the Airport'sriggerate swaps E and F are index rate bonds atdls that
are reset weekly. The Airport is exposed to beslson its pay-fixed interest rate swap derivatinstruments that are
hedged to the index rate bonds, because the variatd payments received by the Airport on theswatése instruments
are based on a rate other than the interest rataitport pays on the index rate bonds. At Junetl3® weighted—average
interest rate on the Airport’s index rate bondspproximately 2.560 percent, while 68 percent aghdnth LIBOR is
approximately 1.395 percent.

Derivative instrument E requires the Airport to posllateral in the event that its Standard & Poonedit rating drops
below A- or if the negative fair value of that dattive instrument exceeds $15 million. The Airfsodredit rating is AA-
at June 30, 2018, and the negative fair value oivalive instrument E does not exceed $15 millidmerefore, no
collateral has been posted for this derivativerument. Derivative instrument F requires the Aitgo post collateral in
the event that its Standard & Poors credit ratingpd below BBB- or if there is a negative fair \alaf that derivative
instrument. Derivative instrument F has a negafaie value at June 30, 2018; therefore, the Airpoas posted
$2,440,000 in collateral with the counterparty linied in restricted cash and equity in pooled ihwesits on the
Airport’s balance sheet).

As rates vary, variable rate bond interest paymants net swap payments will vary. Although notredjction by the
Port of future interest cost of the variable rateds or of the impact of interest rate swaps, Wilhgy are debt service
requirements of the Airport's hedged variable detet and related net swap payments, using rateSJase 30, 2018:

Variable Rate Airport Revent

Bonds
Interest Rat¢
Principal Interest Swaps, net Total
201¢ $ 9,025,000 $ 1,171,27 $ 2,133,62 $ 12,329,90
202( 9,410,001 1,027,77 1,794,03! 12,231,81.
2021 9,865,001 878,15 1,436,73: 12,179,88
202z 10,310,00 721,30: 1,136,75: 12,168,05
202¢ 6,590,001 557,37: 896,78( 8,044,15.
2024-202 28,465,00 1,131,52 1,286,25! 30,882,78

$ 7366500 $ 548740 $ 8,684,118 $ 87,836,59
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Variable Rate Passenger Faci
Charge Bonds

Interest Rat¢

Principal Interest Swaps, net Total
201¢ $ 2,790,000 $ 1,464,188 $ 1,801,500 % 6,055,68!
202 7,955,001 1,392,75 1,509,90: 10,857,66
2021 8,370,001 1,189,11. 1,203,11! 10,762,23
202z 8,805,001 974,84( 880,34t 10,660,18
202z 9,265,001 749,43: 540,69: 10,555,12
2024-202 20,010,00 774,90t 366,53! 21,151,44

$ 57,19500 $ 6545220 $ 6,302,100 $ 70,042,33

7. Industrial Revenue Bonds:

The Port facilitates the issuance of industriakrae bonds by others to finance construction aistrial facilities within
the Port district which it leases or sells on ilistant contracts to the industrial users. Suchlifees and the related
receipts from lease rentals and contract paymestpladged for payment of the bonds. The bondsare liability or
contingent liability of the Port or a lien on anfits properties or revenues other than the indalsfacilities for which
they were issued. Accordingly, the bond liabilayd related receivables are not reflected in the’dPfinancial
statements.

Industrial revenue bonds for Airport industrial ifdies were outstanding in the amount of $17,300,&t both June 30,
2018 and 2017.

8. Pension Plans and Deferred Compensation Plan:

Most employees, after six months of employment, gaeicipants in the State of Oregon Public Empésy&etirement
System (PERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employemedf benefit pension plan (Plan), administered BR8, to which

employees and employers both contribute. Bengditerally vest after five years of service. Ratigat is allowed at age
58 with unreduced benefits, but retirement is galheavailable after age 55 with reduced benefiRetirement benefits
are generally based on salary and length of semicestiree account balance, are calculated usifgrraula, and are
payable in a lump sum or monthly using several gayoptions. Monthly benefits are adjusted angualiough cost-of-

living adjustments (COLA). A prospective cap oe 8OLA which took effect in fiscal 2015 and beyoraties based
upon the amount of the annual benefit. PERS alsuiges death and disability benefits. These hepedvisions and

other requirements are established by state ssatute

For purposes of measuring the net pension liabilitgferred outflows/inflows of resources, and pemsexpense,
information about the fiduciary net position of PERand additions to/deductions from PERS’ fiduciagy position, have
been determined on the same basis as they areteédny PERS. PERS uses accrual basis accountingllféunds,

recognizing revenues when earned, contributionswehue, benefits in the month they are earned, dtidirawals in the
month they are due and payable. PERS issues dclyublailable financial report, which may be obid at

www.oregon.gov/pers or by writing to PERS, PO B8X@0, Tigard, Oregon 97281.

The rate of employee contributions (6 percent afuah covered salary) is established by state staard the rate of
employer contributions to PERS is set periodicelWPERS based on actuarial valuations. The Pootdribution rates
were 15.57 percent and 13.40 percent of annualredygayroll for fiscal years 2018 and 2017, redpelst The Port also
pays the required employee contribution. The Paytelecting to join the State and Local GovernmRate Pool,
effective January 1, 2002, is part of the costigigamultiple-employer segment of the pension plaimited tax pension
bonds were issued to fund the Port’s estimatednatgfd actuarial accrued liability of $54,068,03%84pril 1, 2002, and
$20,012,029 as of October 1, 2005. The proceeds these bond issues are held by PERS in side atscspecific to the
Port, and are factors in the calculation of thetB@mployer contribution rates and the Port's jpntipnate share of the

30



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

8. Pension Plans and Deferred Compensation Placontinued:

collective Net Pension Liability (NPL) or Net Pemsi Asset (NPA). Of these bond issue amounts, $25920 and

$11,244,225 were applicable to the Airport, andenecorded on the Airport balance sheet as ligslifdue to Marine &
Other). The Airport liability is reduced propontiately as the Marine & Other activity makes primtipayments on the
pension bonds. Principal payments on the pensommid were made in the amounts of $1,768,815 artb$;546 in

fiscal 2018 and 2017, respectively, of which $978,&nd $850,201 were applicable to the Airport.

The 2003 Oregon legislature adopted a number ohdments to the benefit structure of PERS, laterifiealby the
Oregon Supreme Court. In addition to adopting adnamts to the benefit structure of PERS, the 26@&lature passed
HB 2020, which established a successor pensiontpl®ERS, the Oregon Public Service Retirement RIESRP). All
public employees hired on or after August 29, 20@8ess membership was previously established iR EBbecome
participants in OPSRP, generally after six monthemaployment. OPSRP is a hybrid pension plan wiih components,
the Pension Program (a defined benefit program) taedindividual Account Program (IAP) (a definedntribution
program), and is administered by PERS, the agerdye Pension Program is funded by employer corttdhs. For
general service members, normal retirement agb o é&ge 58 with 30 years of service, and for go#iad fire members,
normal retirement age is 60 or age 53 with 25 yedrservice. Retirement benefits under the PenSioygram are
calculated using a formula based on final averageryg as defined, and years of service. The I&Runded by a 6
percent employee contribution (which may be paidthey employer for the employee). The Port payseimployee
contribution. Employee contributions are placeadrinemployee account, accounts are adjusted foingaror losses, and
are paid at retirement, either as a lump sum onstallments. Effective January 1, 2004, requiBepercent employee
contributions for PERS members are paid to the neeimdAP account rather than the member's PERS wdc@as
required by the 2003 legislation. The Port’'s ergptocontribution rate to OPSRP, set periodicallyRiyRS based on
actuarial valuations, was 8.02 percent of annueécad payroll for general service members and 1@&f8ent for police
and fire members for fiscal 2018, and 7.33 peradraannual covered payroll for general service memiznd 11.44
percent for police and fire members for fiscal 20thé Port also pays the required employee coritabs of 6 percent of
annual covered salary.

The Port’s fiscal 2018 and 2017 contributions redibgd by PERS were $8,143,225 and $5,549,206. aietu
determinations are not made solely as to Airporplegees. PERS contributions of $3,854,851 and 4809 were
applicable to the Airport for fiscal years 2018 &7, respectively, based upon payroll expense.

GASB Statement No. 68 (GASB 68) establishes staisdfr measuring and recognizing liabilities, defdroutflows of
resources, deferred inflows of resources, and esgpefor defined benefit pensions, GASB 68 idergtithe methods and
assumptions that should be used to project bepafinents, discount projected benefit paymentsdiv dctuarial present
value, and attribute that present value to perifdemployee service. GASB 68 requires the liabitifyemployers to
employees for defined benefit plans (NPL or NPApéomeasured as the portion of the present valpeojécted benefit
payments to be provided through the pension plaautoent active and inactive employees that ishatted to those
employees’ past periods of service (Total Pensiability (TPL) or Total Pension Asset (TPA)), lebe amount of the
pension plan’s fiduciary net position. Employeesstizipating in cost-sharing plans recognize tipeoportionate share of
the collective pension amounts for all benefitsvited through the plan based on an allocation nuztogy.

The Port recognizes its proportion of the PERS NIPLNPA, Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferrefloims of

Resources, and pension expense. The TPL at Jun2038 was determined based on an actuarial vatuas of
December 31, 2015 and rolled forward to the measene date of June 30, 2017; the TPL at June 307 20@ds

determined based on an actuarial valuation as oéber 31, 2014 and rolled forward to the measunénhate of June
30, 2016. The basis for the Port’s proportiondsiarially determined by comparing the employergjgcted long-term
contribution effort to the Plan with the total projed long-term contribution effort of all emploger

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Port’s ptiopate share of the collective NPL of PERS is $88,304, or
0.64370965 percent of the total, and the Port neizeg pension expense of $17,866,439 as its propate share of
PERS pension expense. For the year ended Ju®BD, the Port’'s proportionate share of the callediPL of PERS is
$103,193,124, or 0.687390 percent of the total, &ma Port recognized pension expense of $18,513d30ts
proportionate share of PERS pension expense. Aatuketerminations are not made solely as to Airpmployees. For
the year ended June 30, 2018, $39,036,170 of the &Rl $8,233,507 of pension expense, was appédabthe Airport.
For the year ended June 30, 2017, $46,540,609e0NfPL, and $8,281,256 of pension expense, wascabdi to the
Airport.

31



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, Continued

8. Pension Plans and Deferred Compensation Placontinued:

Actuarial assumptions used in the 2015 valuatidiedoforward to the measurement date of June 3Q728nd in the
2014 valuation rolled forward to the measuremeis ddJune 30, 2016, were as follows:

* Investment Rate of Return: 7.50 percent per annum
» Projected Salary Increases: 3.50 percent overgtbparowth
* Inflation Rate: 2.50 percent per annum

Mortality assumptions for healthy retirees and lfieisies are based on RP-2000 sex-distinct, gdiosia per Scale BB.
Active members’ mortality rates are a percentaghealthy retiree rates that vary by group. Disdbltirees mortality
rates are a percentage (70% for males, 95% forlésnaf the RP-2000 sex-distinct, generational$eale BB, disabled
mortality table.

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involveimsttes of the value of projected benefits and apsioms about the
probability of events far into the future. Actwaly determined amounts are subject to continugkien as actual results
are compared to past expectations and new estirasgemniade about the future. Experience studiepenfermed as of
December 31 of even numbered years. The methodassuimptions shown above are based on the 2014i&xpe

Study, which reviewed experience for the four-yeaniod ended on December 31, 2014.

GASB 68 generally requires that a blended discoate be used to measure the TPL (the Actuarial Weztr iability
calculated using the Individual Entry Age Normals€Method). The long-term expected return on prasestments may
be used to discount liabilities to the extent thatplan’s fiduciary net position is projected twver benefit payments and
administrative expenses. A 20-year high quality (A& or higher) municipal bond rate must be usedpienods where
the fiduciary net position is not projected to colkenefit payments and administrative expense<rbwting the discount
rate under GASB 68 will often require that the acyuperform complex projections of future benefityments and
pension plan investments. GASB 68 (paragraph 6@y @llow for alternative evaluations of projecsaetvency, if such
evaluation can reliably be made. GASB does notesoptate a specific method for making an alternagivaluation of
sufficiency; it is left to professional judgment.

The following circumstances justify an alternatexaluation of sufficiency for PERS:

» PERS has a formal written policy to calculate antuadally Determined Contribution (ADC), which is
articulated in the actuarial valuation report.

« The ADC is based on a closed, layered amortizagtériod, which means that payment of the full ADClegear
will bring the plan to a 100% funded position by thnd of the amortization period if future expecierfollows
assumption.

* GASB 68 specifies that the projections regardingrieisolvency assume that plan assets earn thmadsate of
return and there are no future changes in the plavisions or actuarial methods and assumptiong;hwmeans
that the projections would not reflect any advefisieire experience which might impact the plan’s ded
position.

Based on these circumstances, it is PERS’ indepe¢nalduary’s opinion that the detailed depletionedgrojections
outlined in GASB 68 would clearly indicate that tfiduciary net position is always projected to h#fisient to cover
benefit payments and administrative expenses.

The discount rate used to measure the TPL of PERSAbB0 percent for the measurement dates of Jun2037 and
2016. The projection of cash flows used to deteentive discount rate assumed that contributions fstam members and
those of the contributing employers are made attimeractually required rates, as actuarially deteed. Based on those
assumptions, PERS’ fiduciary net position was tgje to be available to make all projected futusadiit payments of
current PERS members. Therefore, the long-termaggdeaate of return on PERS investments was appdiedl periods
of projected benefit payments to determine the TPL.

For fiscal 2018, the Port's $86,772,304 proporttenshare of the NPL was calculated using the discoate of 7.50

percent as of the measurement date of June 30, 204 Miscount rate 1 percentage point lower @80} were used in the
calculation, it would result in a NPL for the Poift$147,875,850. If a discount rate 1 percentagjatphigher (8.50%)
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were used in the calculation, it would result inN®L for the Port of $35,678,425. For fiscal 201fe Port’s
$103,193,124 proportionate share of the NPL wasutatied using the discount rate of 7.50 percewnf 8% measurement
date of June 30, 2016. If a discount rate 1 peagenpoint lower (6.50%) were used in the calcoigtit would result in a
NPL for the Port of $166,622,488. If a discourterd percentage point higher (8.50%) were usethenctlculation, it
would result in a NPL for the Port of $50,177,274.

To develop an analytical basis for the selectiotheflong-term expected rate of return assumptssdun the calculation
of the TPL at June 30, 2018 and 2017, the PERS®Brtiewed long-term assumptions developed by Btithman’s
capital market assumptions team and the Oregorsiment Council’s (OIC) investment advisors in JARA5. Each
asset class assumption is based on a consisteot gatlerlying assumptions, and includes adjustnfienthe inflation
assumption. These assumptions are not based aritastreturns, but instead are based on a forh@kling capital
market economic model.

2017 Compound

2017 Target annual (geometric)

Asset class allocation* return

Core fixed income 8.00% 4.00%
Short-term bonds 8.00% 3.61%
Bank/leveraged loans 3.00% 5.42%
High yield bonds 1.00% 6.20%
Large/mid cap U.S. equities 15.75% 6.70%
Small cap U.S. equities 1.31% 6.99%
Micro cap U.S. equities 1.31% 7.01%
Developed foreign equities 13.13% 6.73%
Emerging market foreign equities 4.12% 7.25%
Non-U.S. small cap equities 1.88% 7.22%
Private equity 17.50% 7.97%
Real estate (property) 10.00% 5.84%
Real estate (REITS) 2.50% 6.69%
Hedge fund of funds - diversified 2.50% 4.64%
Hedge fund - event driven 0.63% 6.72%
Timber 1.88% 5.85%
Farmland 1.88% 6.37%
Infrastructure 3.75% 7.13%
Commodities 1.88% 4.58%
Assumed inflation - mean n/a 2.50%

* Based on the OIC Statement of Investment Objestand Policy Framework for the Oregon Public Eiygés
Retirement Fund, revised as of December 3, 20h& revised allocation was adopted at the Ju2@B5 OIC meeting.

Deferred items are calculated at the PERS level alogdated to the Port based upon its proportioshte. For the

measurement dates of June 30, 2017 and 2016, Wene deferred outflows and inflows of resourcesitesl to the
following sources:
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Deferred outflow of resources Deferred inflow ofaeces
Measurement date of June 30, 2017 2016 2017 2016

Differences between expected and ac
experience$ 4,196,345 $ 3,414,080
Changes of assumptic 15,817,043 22,008,614

Net difference between projected and ac

earnings on plan investments 893,958 20,386,632
Changes in proportionate sh 2,468,300 3,216,269 3,036,866 111,129
Differences between contributions and P
proportionate share of system contributions 2,454,453 2,393,294

Total deferred outflow (inflow) of resource$ 23,375,646 $ 49,025595 $ 5,491,319 $ 2,504,423

Port employer contributions for PERS made aftermteasurement date are reported as deferred outfiavike balance
sheet at June 30, 2018 and 2017 in the amount d43$225 and $5,549,206, respectively; these darions are
recognized as a reduction in the Port's NPL inehsuing year. $3,854,851 and $2,545,409 of therdef outflows were
applicable to the Airport at June 30, 2018 and 2043pectively.

Cumulative deferred inflows and outflows relatedP®&RS will be recognized in pension expense asvisl

Deferred Outflow Deferred Outflow Deferred Outflow

(Inflow) of (Inflow) of (Inflow) of
Fiscal Year Endin Resources - Resources - Resources -
June 3( Airport Marine & Othe Total
2019 $ 1,440,854 $ 1,838,626 $ 3,279,480
2020 4,566,006 5,826,526 10,392,532
2021 3,115,122 3,975,101 7,090,223
2022 (1,206,946) (1,540,143) (2,747,089)
2023 (57,476) (73,343) (130,819)

Total $ 7,857,56! $ 10,026,76 $ 17,884,32

Subsequent to the measurement date, the PERS Bdapted a new long-term rate of return assumptfoh2%. This
change will be reflected in the next year’s actiaraluations. The effect of this decision is extpd to be significant to
the plan liabilities.

The Port offers all its employees a deferred cormaon plan created in accordance with IRC Section. The plan
permits eligible employees to defer a portion d@itlturrent salary until future years. The defércempensation is not
available to the employees until termination, estient, death, or unforeseeable emergency. All ata@mfrcompensation
deferred under the plan, all property and rightscpased with those amounts, and all income attlidat to those
amounts, property, or rights are solely the prgparid rights of an employee trust, held for thelesige benefit of
participants and their beneficiaries, and are nbjext to the claims of the Port’'s general creditofhe Port has little
administrative involvement with the plan and does perform the investing function. Therefore, filan assets are not
included on the balance sheet.
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The Port administers a single-employer defined-fieiealthcare plan which provides certain quatifyiemployees
retiring under PERS or OPSRP with Port-paid health@coverage for the qualifying retiree until age @his program is
being phased out and is closed to any employeeditianot meet age and length-of-service eligipiiéquirements by
December 31, 2011. The Port does not issue aghpblailable report on the plan. No assets aceiraalated in a trust
that meets the criteria in paragraph 4 of GASBarl contributions to the plan are made on a payeasgo basis.

Under Oregon State law, employees retiring undeR®¥Br OPSRP may make a one-time election at retinerto
continue their health insurance coverage throughPtbrt until eligible for Medicare (usually age 65Joverage may be
elected for the retiring employee, their spousel fon qualifying dependents. Premiums are paidHeyretiree at the
Port’s pooled rate, which is the same rate paidafiiive employees. Retirees, on average, are &péa have higher
health care costs than active employees, primalily to the older average age of retirees. Sineestime premium
applies to both groups, the premiums paid for actinployees by the Port are subsidizing the presiiomretirees. As a
result, there is an ‘implicit subsidy’ paid by tRert; the implicit subsidy associated with retitemalth care costs paid
during the last year is also considered to be #&itoion from the Port.

At June 30, 2017, the following employees were ceddy the benefits terms of the plan:

Inactive employees currently receiving benefitipants 54

Inactive employees entitled to but not yet receiMbenefit payments 0

Active employees _ 723
77

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the Port's witer postemployment benefit (OPEB) liability of, 383,870 was
determined based upon a July 1, 2017 actuariahtialy measured as of June 30, 2017, rolled foru@adreporting date
of June 30, 2018. The Port recognized OPEB expeh%837,178 in fiscal 2018, with $190,112 of OPERBpense
applicable to the Airport. For the year ended J8fOg 2017, the Port's total other postemploymentefie (OPEB)

liability of $6,318,267 was determined based updulg 1, 2017 actuarial valuation, measured asiné B0, 2017. The
Port recognized OPEB expense of $331,248 in figeal7, with $186,852 of OPEB expense applicableh#o Airport.

The OPEB liability in the July 1, 2017 actuarialluetion measured as of June 30, 2017 was determisad the

following actuarial assumptions:

* Adiscount rate of 3.13 percent based on the S&Ridfpal Bond 20-Year High Grade Index as of Jung280.7
* A healthcare cost trend rate of 7.5 percent granhfdrmly to 5.0 percent over a 10-year period

* Mortality rates were based on the RP-2014 Mortaligble adjusted to 2006 with generational mortality
improvement under Projection Scale MP-2016

Changes in the total OPEB liability during fisc@8l18 are shown in the following table:

Balance at 6/30/2017 $ 6,318,267
Service cost 146,462
Interest 190,716
Benefit payments (371,575)

Net change (34,397)

Balance at 6/30/20: $ 6,283,87

The following table presents the total OPEB liapilbf the Port, as well as what the Port’s totalEBRliability would
have been if it were calculated using a health tamd rate assumption that is 1-percentage-poimet or 1-percentage-
point higher than the current health care trenel aasumption:
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Healthcare Cost

1% Decrease Trend Rate 1% increase
decreasing to decreasing to decreasing to
4%) 5%) 6%)

Total OPEB liability, 6/30/2018 $ 5,713,925 $ 6,283,870 $ 6,952,692
Total OPEB liability, 6/30/2017 $ 5792516 $ 6,318,267 $ 6,934,597

The following table presents the total OPEB liapilbf the Port, as well as what the Port’s totalEBRliability would
have been if it were calculated using a discoutet flzat is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percenfamat higher than the
current discount rate:
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% increase
(2.13%) (3.13%) (4.13%)
Total OPEB liability, 6/30/2018 $ 6,819,834 $ 6,283,870 $ 5,800,690
Total OPEB liability, 6/30/2017 $ 6,871,933 $ 6,318,267 $ 5,821,323

Port benefits payments made after the measureraémiage reported as deferred outflows on the balaheet at June 30,
2018 and 2017 in the amount of $399,443 and $3B1/&Bpectively. These payments are recognizedraduction in
the Port’s total OPEB liability in the ensuing ye&229,781 and $213,750 of the deferred outflowsevapplicable to the
Airport at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

10. Risk Management:

The Port has a comprehensive risk management pnograch primarily utilizes commercial insurance thwcertain self-
insurance, to provide protection from losses in@wvproperty, liability, injuries to personnel aedors and omissions,
with various deductibles and self-insured retergion

The Airport is a full participant in the Port's kisnanagement program. The Airport’'s expensesaelat this program are
recorded when incurred, with cash being paid td?be’s General Fund for ease of administration.

The Port self-insures for certain workers' compgosdosses for amounts up to $1,000,000 per antidEor amounts in
excess of self-insured limits, insurance in the amioof the statutory limit per loss (unlimited) risaintained. Claim
expenses and liabilities are recorded when it @bable that a loss has occurred and the amourtteofoss can be
reasonably estimated.

Liabilities include an estimate for claims that ddveen incurred but not reported. Claims liab#itare based on the
estimated ultimate cost of settling the claimsngspast experience adjusted for current trendsutiirea case-by-case
review of all claims. Effective May 8, 1993, ceéntavorkers' compensation losses incurred after siete are the

responsibility of an independent marine terminahagement company.

Changes in the reported liability for workers' canpation resulted from the following:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2018 2017
Beginning liability $ 1,309,654 $ 1,217,014
Current year claims and changes in estimates 205,678 470,983
Claim payments (434,566) (378,343)
Ending liability $ 1,080,76! $ 1,309,65:

Approximately $711,332 and $998,420 of the liapilivas applicable to the Airport at June 30, 2018 2017,
respectively.
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At June 30, 2018, land acquisition and constructiontract commitments aggregated approximately FZ®8000 for the
Airport, $17,700,000 for Marine & Other, and $30@)4000 in total.

The Port, in the regular course of business, isethms a defendant in lawsuits. Although litigatisninherently
uncertain, management of the Port does not betieatethe ultimate resolution of these lawsuits atiter contingencies
which, for the most part, are normal to the Pdnt'siness, will have any material effect upon maficial statements.

The Port is subject to federal, state, and localrenmental laws and regulations. Pursuant toghews and regulations,
the Port has identified a number of contaminatéelsson Port properties that will require remedialeistigation and

action. Some properties owned or operated by therRay have unacceptable levels of contaminansoily sediments,

or groundwater. In some cases, the Port has besigrdited by Federal or State government as atfatgmesponsible

party (PRP) for the investigation and cleanup aiperties owned by the Port or where the Port ma ltantributed to

site contamination.

In December 2000, the Environmental Protection AggiEPA) listed the Portland Harbor, including upla portions, on
the National Priorities List of Superfund sites quant to the Comprehensive Environmental Respoonsg€nsation and
Liability Act. The EPA and the Oregon Departmeh&ovironmental Quality (DEQ) have identified therPand other
PRPs as potentially liable for cleanup of the sifEhe Port and other PRPs have signed an Admitiigr®rder on
Consent (AOC) to perform remedial investigation @whluation activities for the site. Uplands atie are being
conducted under the supervision of the DEQ. The Fas accrued approximately $560,000 for its estith remaining
share of the costs of these Portland Harbor inyattie activities at June 30, 2018. In January72@ie EPA released a
Record of Decision (ROD) for the Portland Harbdtleanup costs for the Portland Harbor remain uagemnder the
ROD and are not yet estimable under GAAP, and tw'sPultimate share of cleanup costs is not knowfithin the
PortlandHarbor, there are certain Port-owned, or formenyned facilities that require remedial investigatiand/or
cleanup. The Port entered into a separate AOC thighEPA governing early action cleanup activitesone of these
sites. The Port has accrued approximately $240800in estimated costs for this cleanup at June28@8. At another
site, the Port has accrued approximately $22,100i0@stimated remaining costs at June 30, 201&h Bese sites are
accounted for within the Marine & Other activity.

Operating expense and the corresponding liabiliasared at current value using the expected cashrflethod have

been recognized for certain pollution remediatibfigations that may not have been previously rexfuito be recognized.
Certain other environmental contingencies may Hewied measurable transactions and events aglniicognition, but

estimates will increase over time as more compankatome reasonably estimable. Liabilities witloabe remeasured
when new information indicates increases or deeseasestimated outlays.

Changes in estimated long-term environmental ligdsl were as follows:

Beginning Ending
Balance Increase Decrease Balance
Airport:
Environmental liabilitie $ 4,779,001 $ 226,000 $ 5,005,00!
less: current portic (1,724,000 $ (1,897,809 444,30¢ (3,177,500
Long-term liability $ 3,055,000 $ (1,897,809 $ 670,30¢ $ 1,827,501
Marine & Other:
Environmental liabilitie $ 52,109,78 $ 17,882,222 $ (5,807,027 $ 64,184,98
less: current portic (4,502,974 (14,415,107 2,101,99i (16,816,08z
Long-term liability $ 47,606,81 $ 3,467,11' $ (3,705,029 $ 47,368,90:
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The Port leases from others, under operating leasghouse and office space, office equipment,safainerged lands.
These leases expire at varying times through fi202B. Total rental expense (all minimum rentéds)operating leases
approximated $196,000 and $199,000 for Marine &®th 2018 and 2017, respectively, and $206,000&212,000 for

the Airport in 2018 and 2017, respectively. Futom@imum rental payments on noncancelable operadgéiages for the
five succeeding fiscal years and five year increisiémereafter are:

Airport Marine & Other Total Port
2019 $ 204,647 $ 84,281 $ 288,928
2020 203,786 28,379 232,165
2021 11,541 5,303 16,844
2022 8,510 5,303 13,813
2023 442 442

Total $ 428,48 $ 123,70t $ 552,19.

12. Tax Abatements:

The Port is subject to property tax abatementstgdaby counties within the Port District pursuamiState statute. Tax
abatements granted within the Port District rediimeamount of property taxes collected under the’SPproperty tax

levy in each county. Port property tax revenueseweduced by approximately $178,000 under agretnamered into
by Multnomah County, $279,000 under agreementseshtato by Clackamas County, and $1,034,000 uagezements

entered into by Washington County.

13. Budget Overexpenditure:

In the Airport Revenue Fund, the Port overexpended budget appropriation item for operating expemds. The
overexpenditure of $564,256 was caused by revigibran estimated accrued environmental liabilityeaffinal

appropriations were made for the fiscal year, ameschot represent a cash overexpenditure.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN TOTAL OPEB LIABILITY AND REBATED RATIOS

2018 2017
Total OPEB liability - beginning $ 6,318,267 $ 6,332,670
Service cost 146,462 139,488
Interest 190,716 191,760
Benefit payments (371,575) (345,651)
Net change (34,397) (14,403)
Total OPEB liability - endin $  6,283,87 $ 6,318,26'
Covered-employee payroll $ 62,444,085 $ 62,444,085
Total OPEB liability as a percentage
of covered-employee payroll 10.1% 10.1%

Notes to Schedule:
No assets are accumulated in a trust that meetgitbaa of paragraph 4 of Statement 75.
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF PERS NET PENSIOABILITY (ASSET)

Measurement date as-of June 30, 2017 2016 2015 2014 201

Port share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) - petage 0.643710% 0.687390% 0.627646% 0.636022% 0.636022%

Port share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) - amdéd $86,772,304 $103,193,124 $ 36,036,033 $ (14,416,804) $ 32,457,134

Port covered-employee payroll [B] $ 70,942,006 66,585,000 $ 66,637,000 $ 61,267,000 $ 60,855,267
Port share of Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a

percentage of Port covered-employee payroll [A/B] 122.3% 155.0% 54.1% (23.5)% 53.3%
PERS fiduciary net position as a percentage of TPL 3.1% 80.5% 91.9% 103.6% 92.0%
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Fiscal Year: 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 8,143$% 5549% 5549% 5332% 4831 $ 5,030% 4966% 1902% 1,764$%$ 3,614
Contribution in relation to Actuarially

Determined Contribution 8,143 5,549 5,549 5,332 4,831 5,030 4,966 1,902 1,764 3,614
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

Covered Employee Payroll $ 71,239% 70,942% 66,585% 66,637 $ 61,267 $ 60,8555 60,447 $ 56,138 % 54,943 $ 55,905
Contribution as a percentage of Covered

Employee Payroll 11.4% 7.8% 8.3% 8.0% 7.9% 8.3% 8.2% 3.4% 3.2% 6.5%

W Effective in Port fiscal year 2016, the actuarigthodology utilized by PERS for determining

employer contributions changed from projected arétit to entry age normal.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
ORGANIZATION AND INTERNAL FUND DIVISIONS

The Port of Portland is a municipal corporationatee in its present form by the 1971 merger of Pbe of Portland and
the Commission of Public Docks. A nine-member cassion establishes and maintains Port policy fetaéf under the
guidance of an executive director.

The original Port of Portland was created in 1891He Oregon Legislative Assembly with the objeetof dredging and
maintaining a channel between Portland and thefiP&tean. As its operations and responsibilitteseased, the Port
acquired its aviation and land development intsrest

The City of Portland in 1910 created the CommissiérPublic Docks to promote and develop maritimenoterce
through Portland Harbor and, in 1970, the votergrayed a merger of these two organizations. 1i3187e Port district
was expanded to include all of Multhomah, Clackaras Washington Counties.

For financial reporting and operating purposes, agament considers the activities of the Port tdha¢ of a unitary
enterprise operation. For budgetary and bond ardie requirement purposes only, the primary dimsiof the accounts
of the Port consist of the following funds (acca)nt

General Fund

Used to finance the general operations of the &udt subject to restrictions of the local budget, las assets may be
transferred to another fund for any authorized psep Principal revenue sources are marine faslitiperations, land
sales, and leases.

Bond Construction Fund

This fund finances the acquisition, constructioxpansion, and improvement of new and existing stines and facilities.
Resources are from transfers from the General Fgrahts, interest on investments, and a propertylery for Port
improvements.

Airport Revenue Fund

This fund is to be held and administered by thet Berlong as any Portland International Airport &aye Bonds are
outstanding. The monies deposited in this fundnatecommingled with any other monies of the Pod are used and
applied only in the manner as specified by SectidnOrdinance No. 155 and Section 6, Ordinance 328. Airport
operations are accounted for in this fund. Priacigvenue sources are flight fees, rentals, pgrkéamd concession
income.

Airport Revenue Bond Fund

This fund is administered by a trustee appointedeursection 11, Ordinance No. 323. The moniesisfund are used
solely for the payment of principal and interes¢ d@un Portland International Airport Revenue BonBsincipal resources
are revenue bond proceeds, interest, and trarfséensthe Airport Revenue Fund and the Airport Camsion Fund.

Airport Construction Fund

The monies credited to this fund are used and egpdblely to the payment of costs of additions,assjpons, and
improvements to the Airport in accordance with #ectl2, Ordinance No. 155 and Section 8, OrdinaNoe 323.
Principal resources are interest, grants, and te/éond proceeds.

PFC Fund

This fund is used to account for PFC revenue. Amw®ueredited to this fund are used to provide febtdservice on
Portland International Airport Passenger Facilitya@e Revenue Bonds and to construct certain assatsordance with
Section 2, Ordinance No. 395-B. Principal resosiar@ PFC revenue, bond proceeds, and interest.

PFC Bond Fund

This fund, created in accordance with Section &liance No. 395-B, is administered by a trusteetHe payment of
principal and interest on Portland Internationaipart Passenger Facility Charge Revenue Bondsicipél resources are
transfers from the PFC Fund, bond proceeds, ardeisit
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CEC Fund

This fund is used to account for CFC revenues. Momies credited to this fund are used and ap@mdly to the
payment of costs of projects related to rentalfaellities, related Port-approved enabling projeersd program costs at
the Airport in accordance with Section 4, OrdinaNge 448. The principal resources for this fune arcustomer facility
charge imposed on rental car customers who reatrabiles from Airport facilities and interest.

CFC Bond Fund

This fund, created in anticipation of future isstef Portland International Airport Customer FHagiCharge Revenue
Bonds (CFC revenue bonds), will be administered ligustee for the payment of principal and intecestCFC revenue
bonds. Principal resources are anticipated todresters from the CFC Fund, bond proceeds, antestte
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Port Funds:
General Fund

THE PORT OF PORTLAND

RECONCILIATION OF BUDGETARY REVENUES AND EXPENDITURS TO INCOME BEFORE

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Bond Construction Fund

Airport Revenue
Airport Revenue
Airport Construc
PFC Fund
PFC Bond Fund
CFC Fund

Fund
Bond Fund
tion Fund

Totals - budgetary reporting bi

Add (deduct) adjustments to budgetary reportingsbas
which are necessary to reflect results of ajpans
on financial reporting basis in accordancdwit
generally accepted accounting principles:
Capital outlay expenditures
Internal costs on capital projects
Interest expense capitalized

Depreciation an

d amortization expense

Expenses that will be expended in future years
Contributions from governmental agencies
Bond and contract payable principal expenditures

Change in unearned revenues and certain nomtueeeivables

Difference between income and proceeds fronssHl&and
Noncash pension and OPEB expense
Amortization of bond issuance costs and defechedges on refunding bonds

Other

Income before

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Chanbles Assets

*

contributions and transfers per

$

Budgetary Basis * Excess
Revenues

Revenues Expenditures (Expenditures)
70,590,020 $ 116,889,845 $ (46,299,825)
14,161,092 13,346,733 814,359
271,476,537 136,802,406 134,674,131
690,580 61,264,797 (60,574,217)
11,626,926 143,587,262 (131,960,336)
38,252,374 29,651 38,222,723
226,584 14,814,257 (14,587,673)
15,671,427 15,671,427
422,695,54 $ 486,734,95 (64,039,411
156,800,812

18,316,108

17,301,142

(112,593,415)

2,270,210

(11,954,175)

47,101,475

3,036,373

(6,885,637)

(9,559,741)

(2,863,831)

The Port budgets all funds on the accrual basg&ccounting.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

RECONCILIATION OF AIRPORT BUDGETARY REVENUES AND ERENDITURES TO INCOME BEFORE

CONTRIBUTIONS AND TRANSFERS
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Budgetary Basis * Excess
Revenues
Revenues Expenditures (Expenditures)
Airport Funds:
Airport Revenue Fund $ 271,476,537 $ 136,802,406 $ 134,674,131
Airport Revenue Bond Fund 690,580 61,264,797 (60,574,217)
Airport Construction Fund 11,626,926 143,587,262 (131,960,336)
PFC Fund 38,252,374 29,651 38,222,723
PFC Bond Fund 226,584 14,814,257 (14,587,673)
CFC Fund 15,671,427 15,671,427
Totals - budgetary reporting bi $ 337,94442 $ 356,498,37 (18,553,94¢
Add (deduct) adjustments to budgetary reportingsbas

which are necessary to reflect results of ajpans

on financial reporting basis in accordancdwit

generally accepted accounting principles:
Capital outlay expenditures 143,454,079
Internal costs on capital projects 1,520,900
Interest expense capitalized 17,301,142
Depreciation and amortization expense (92,410,076)
Expenses that will be expended in future years 2,032,300
Contributions from governmental agencies (10,338,147)
Bond principal expenditures 41,912,483
Change in unearned revenues and certain nomtueeeivables 2,194,640
Noncash pension and OPEB expense (4,292,562)
Amortization of bond issuance costs and defechedges on refunding bonds (2,840,991)
Intra-Port services received, provided, and lozad (24,177,325)
Allocation of pension debt service (3,688,846)
Other 1,098,984

Income before contributions and transfers per

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Chanbjes Asset $

* The Airport budgets all funds on the accrualiba$ accounting.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
GENERAL FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Operating revenues:
Administration $ 160,000 $ 160,000 $ 162,521 $ 2,521
Marine 20,973,106 $ 4,300,000 25,273,106 25,878,628 605,522
Industrial Development 26,714,735 26,714,735 ,802,815 (13,904,920)
Navigation 14,336,130 14,336,130 15,492,974 1,156,844
General Aviation 4,334,478 4,334,478 4,583,381 248,903
66,518,449 4,300,000 70,818,449 58,927,319 (11,89}),130
Interest 2,922,700 500,000 3,422,700 3,306,633 (116,067)
Fixed asset sales and other 8,500,000 8,500,000 8,356,068 (143,932)
Total revenues 69,441,149 13,300,000 82,741,149 70,590,020 (12,15),129
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
Bond Construction Fund 3,532,182 3,532,182 2,855,47 (676,705)
Airport Construction Fund 12,685,554 12,685,554 939,733 1,254,179
Airport Revenue Fund 29,642,884 29,642,884 29,(89,4 (543,446)
Total transfers 45,860,620 45,860,620 45,894,648 34,028
Total revenues and transfers 115,301,769 ,3003000 128,601,769 116,484,668 (12,117,101)
BEGINNING WORKING CAPITAL 156,457,245 156,457,245 23682,890 56,905,645
Total resourc $ 271,759,010 $ 13,300,000 $ 285,059,01 $ 329,847,55 $ 44,788,54
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
GENERAL FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS), Continued
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Administration $ 53,818,390 $ 53,818,390 $ 48,544,286 $ 5,274,104
Marine 19,794,072 $ 6,100,000 25,894,072 25,556,817 337,255
Industrial Development 5,099,705 5,099,705 4,245,731 883,97
Navigation 11,095,474 11,095,474 10,531,426 564,048
General Aviation 3,358,955 500,000 3,858,955 3,654,574 204,381
Long-term debt payments 12,411,555 12,411,555 12,131,082 47280
System development charges/other 250,000 2,000,000 2,250,000 1,931,522 318,478
Other environmental 3,204,812 14,500,000 17,704,812 10,294,407 7,410,405
Contingencies 133,140,614 (9,800,000) 123,340,614 123,340,614
Total expenditur 242,173,57 13,300,00 255,473,57 116,889,84 138,583,73
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
Bond Construction Fund 29,201,305 29,201,305 29,201,305
Airport Revenue Fund 384,132 384,132 204,080 180,052
Total transfers 29,585,437 29,585,437 204,080 29,381,357
Total expenditures and trans $ 271,759,01 $ 13,300,000 $ 285,059,01 117,093,92 $ 167,965,08
ENDING WORKING CAPITAL $ 212,753,63
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
BOND CONSTRUCTION FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Over
(Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest and other $ 244,000 $ 468,439 $ 224,439
Grants 4,363,312 1,616,028 (2,747,284)
4,607,312 2,084,467 (2,522,845)
Tax and tax items:
Current property tax levy - net 11,919,999 12,055,459 135,460
Interest on taxes 21,166 21,166
11,919,999 12,076,625 156,626
Total revenues 16,527,311 14,161,092 (2,366,219)
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
General Fund 29,201,305 (29,201,305)
Airport Revenue Fund 1,974,906 498,934 (1,475,972)
Total transfers 31,176,211 498,934 (30,677,277)
BEGINNING WORKING CAPITAL 10,000,000 16,069,307 6,069,307
Total resourc $ 57,703,52 30,729,33° $ (26,974,18¢
(Over)
Under
Appropriations Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay $ 44,116,255 13,346,733 $ 30,769,522
Contingencies 10,000,000 10,000,000
Total expenditures 54,116,255 13,346,733 40,769,522
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
General Fund 3,532,182 2,855,477 676,705
Airport Revenue Fund 55,085 22,572 32,513
Total transfers 3,587,267 2,878,049 709,218
Total expenditures and trans $ 57,703,52 16,224,78 $ 41,478,74

ENDING WORKING CAPITAL $ 14,504,55
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
AIRPORT REVENUE FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Operating revenue - Portland International Aitpo $ 240,729,359 $ 240,729,359 $ 241,933,884 $ 1,204,525
Interest and other 2,268,700 2,268,700 1,042,653 (1,226,047)
Commercial paper proceeds $ 200,000,000 200,000,000 28,500,000 (171,500,000)
Total revenues 242,998,059 200,000,000 8059 271,476,537 (171,521,522)
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
General Fund 384,132 384,132 204,080 (180,052)
Bond Construction Fund 55,085 55,085 22,572 (32,513)
Airport Construction Fund 2,081,643 2,081,643 3,488 1,023,800
CFC Fund 200,000 200,000 169,611 (30,389)
Total transfers 2,720,860 2,720,860 3,501,706 780,846
Total revenues and transfers 245,718,919 0,080,000 445,718,919 274,978,243 (170,740,676)
BEGINNING WORKING CAPITAL 94,740,916 94,740,916 94,6430 (68,486)
Total resourc $ 340,459,83 $ 200,000,00 $ 540,459,83 369,650,67 $ (170,809,162
Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Operating expenditures $ 105,105,896 $ 2,500,000 $,6067896 108,170,152 $ (564,256)
Commercial paper debt service payments 100,980,00 100,950,000 28,629,693 72,320,307
Other 605,000 605,000 2,561 602,439
Contingencies 104,460,000 (1,500,000) 102,960,000 102,960,000
Total expenditures 210,170,896 101,950,000 12,120,896 136,802,406 175,318,490
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
General Fund 29,642,884 29,642,884 29,099,438 543,446
Bond Construction Fund 1,974,906 1,974,906 498,934 4751972
Airport Construction Fund 41,011,815 60,050,000 ,001,815 63,551,523 37,510,292
Airport Revenue Bond Fund 57,659,334 57,659,334 3@i411 3,350,923
CFC Fund 38,000,000 38,000,000 13,615,477 24,384,523
Total transfers 130,288,939 98,050,000 2B B9 161,073,783 67,265,156
Total expenditures and trans $ 340,459,83 $ 200,000,00 $ 540,459,83 297,876,18 $ 242,583,64

ENDING WORKING CAPITAL $ 71,774,48
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
AIRPORT REVENUE BOND FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest and other $ 121,760 $ 121,760 $ 690,580 $ 268,8
Bond sale proceeds 9,000,000 $ (9,000,000)
Total revenues 9,121,760 (9,000,000) 121,760 690,580 568,820
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
Airport Revenue Fund 57,659,334 57,659,334 54,308,4 (3,350,923)
Airport Construction Fund 8,500,000 (4,500,000) 00,000 6,891,937 2,891,937
Total transfers 66,159,334 (4,500,000) 61,659,334 61,200,348 (458,986)
Total revenues and transfers 75,281,094 ,5QUB000) 61,781,094 61,890,928 109,834
BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE DEBT SERVICE 36,994,752 369952 37,073,586 78,834
Total resourc $ 112,275,84 $ (13,500,00C $ 98,775,84 98,964,51. $ 188,66¢
Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Long-term debt payments $ 66,281,094 $ (4,500,000) 41,783,094 61,264,797 $ 516,297
Total expenditur 66,281,09. (4,500,000 61,781,09 61,264,79 $ 516,29
UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE 45,994,752 (9,000,000) 36,9827
$ 112,275,84 $ (13,500,00C $ 98,775,84
ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS AVAILABLE
$__37.60971

FOR FUTURE DEBT SERVIC

50



THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
AIRPORT CONSTRUCTION FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Grants $ 14,945,759 $ 14,945759 $ 10,338,147 $ (4,607,612)
Interest and other 1,601,800 $ (1,000,000) 601,800 1,288,779 686,979
Bond sale proceeds 120,000,000 (120,000,000)
Total revenues 136,547,559 (121,000,000) 5415559 11,626,926 (3,920,633)
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
Airport Revenue Fund 41,011,815 60,050,000 1018631, 63,551,523 (37,510,292)
CFC Fund 80,000,000 (14,000,000) 66,000,000 35,594,911 (30,49%,0
PFC Fund 38,000,000 38,000,000 29,274 (37,970,726)
Total transfers 159,011,815 46,050,000 )1 SY ) 99,175,708 (105,886,107)
BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 270,174,532 270,17453 265,664,078 (4,510,454)
Total resourc $ 565,733,90 $ (74,950,00C $ 490,783,90 376,466,71 $ (114,317,19¢
Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Capital outlay $ 340,341,864 $ 340,341,864 143,587,262 $ 196,754,602
Bond issue costs/other 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,00
Contingencies 201,124,845 $ (70,450,000) 130,674,845 130,674,845
Total expenditures 542,466,709 (70,450,000) 472,016,709 143,587,262 328,429,447
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
General Fund 12,685,554 12,685,554 13,939,733 (1,254,179)
Airport Revenue Fund 2,081,643 2,081,643 3,105,443 1,023,800)
Airport Revenue Bond Fund 8,500,000 (4,500,000) 0@,000 6,891,937 (2,891,937)
Total transfers 23,267,197 (4,500,000) 18,767,197 23,937,113 (5,169,916
Total expenditures and trans $ 565,733,90 $ (74,950,00C $ 490,783,90 167,524,37 $ 323,259,53
ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS

AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIOM $ 208,942,33
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
PFC FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Over
(Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest and other $ 1,172,700 $ 111,779 $ (1,060,921)
Passenger facility charges 37,567,107 38,140,595 573,488
Total revenues 38,739,807 38,252,374 (487,433)
BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 85,077,809 98,241,915 13,164,106
Total resourc $ 123,817,61 136,494,28 $ 12,676,67
(Over)
Under
Budget Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Other $ 50,750 29,651 $ 21,099
Contingencies 70,962,041 70,962,041
Total expenditures 71,012,791 29,651 70,983,140
TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
PFC Bond Fund 14,804,825 14,733,582 71,243
Airport Construction Fund 38,000,000 29,274 37,970,726
Total transfers 52,804,825 14,762,856 38,041,969
Total expenditures and trans $ 123,817,61 14,792,50 $ 109,025,10

ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIOM $ 121,701,78
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
PFC BOND FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Over
(Under)
Budget Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Interest and other $ 65,000 $ 226,584 $ 161,584
Total revenues 65,000 226,584 161,584
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
PFC Fund 14,804,825 14,733,582 (71,243)
BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE DEBT SERVICE 14,399,016 14,450,178 51,162
Total resourc $ 29,268,84 29,410,344 $ 141,50:
(Over)
Under
Budget Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Long-term debt payments $ 14,869,825 14,814,257 $ 55,568
Total expenditur 14,869,82 14,81425 $ 55,56¢

UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE 14,399,016
$ 29,268,84

ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR FUTURE DEBT SERVICE $ 14,596,087
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REVENUES:
Interest and other
Bond sale and other debt proceeds
Customer facility charges
Total revenu

TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:

Airport Revenue Fund
Total transfers

Total revenues and transfers

BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION

Total resourc

EXPENDITURES:
Bank fees and other
Contingencies
Total expenditures

TRANSFERS TO OTHER FUNDS:
Airport Revenue Fund
Airport Construction Fund
CFC Bond Fund
Total transfers

UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE
Total expenditures and trans

ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATIONM

THE PORT OF PORTLAND

CFC FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources

Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
$ 18,500 $ 18,500 $ 120,330 $ 101,830
160,000,000 $,006,000)
16,239,214 16,239,214 5385097 (688,117)
176,257,71 (160,000,00( 16,257,71 15,671,42 (586,287
38,000,000 38,000,000 13,615,477 (24,384,523)
38,000,000 38,000,000 13,615,477 (24,384,523)
176,257,714 22,0D0,000) 54,257,714 29,286,904 (24,970,810)
17,730,166 17,730,166 1,801,768 (5,928,398)
$ 193,987,88 $ (122,000,00C $ 71,987,88 41,088,67 $ (30,899,20¢
Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
$ 1,000,000 $ (900,000) $ 100,000 $ 100,000
106,787,880 (101,100,000) 5,687,880 5,687,880
107,787,880 (102,000,000 5,787,880 5,787,880
200,000 200,000 169,611 30,389
80,000,000 (14,000,000) 6,060,000 35,594,911 30,405,089
6,000,000 (6,000,000)
86,200,000 (20,000,000) 66,200,000 35,764,522 30,485,47
$ 193,987,888 $ (122,000,00C $ 71,987,88 35,764,52 $ 36,223,35
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF RESOURCES, EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
CFC BOND FUND
(BUDGETARY BASIS)
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Resources Over
Transfers (Under)
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
REVENUES:
Bond sale and other debt proceeds $ 12,000,000 $,000P00) $ $ $
Total revenues 12,000,000 (12,000,000)
TRANSFERS FROM OTHER FUNDS:
CFC Fund 6,000,000 (6,000,000)
Total transfers 6,000,000 (6,000,000)
Total revenues and transfers 18,000,000 ,0(IBO0OO)
BEGINNING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION
Total resourc $ 18,000,000 $ (18,000,00C $ $
Appropriations (Over)
Transfers Under
Original In (Out) Revised Actual Budget
EXPENDITURES:
Long-term debt payments $ 6,000,000 $  (6,000,000) $ $
Total expenditures 6,000,000 (6,000,000)
UNAPPROPRIATED BALANCE 12,000,000 (12,000,000)
Total expenditures and trans $ 18,000,000 $ (18,000,00C $ $
ENDING RESTRICTED NET ASSETS
AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION $
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ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Equity in pooled investments
Restricted cash and equity in pooled investments
Receivables, net of allowance for doubtful actsu
Prepaid insurance and other assets
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted assets:
Cash and equity in pooled investments
Receivables
Total restricted assets

Land held for sale

Depreciable properties, net of accumulated digtien

Nondepreciable properties

Unamortized bond issue costs

Due from other funds

Other noncurrent assets
Total noncurrent assets

Deferred outflows of resources:

Deferred charges on refunding bonds

Deferred charges on pensions and OPEB

Cumulative decrease in fair value of hedgingvagive
Total deferred outflows of resources

U1 Total asse
»

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities (payable from current assets):
Current portion of long-term debt
Accounts payable
Accrued wages, vacation and sick leave pay
Workers' compensation and other accrued ligslit
Total current liabilities (payable from cumteassets)

Restricted liabilities (payable from restricesbets):
Current portion of long-term debt and other
Accrued interest payable
Accounts payable
Contract retainage payable

Total restricted current liabilities (p&ya from restricted assets)

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term environmental and other accruals
Long-term debt
Unearned revenue and other
Net pension and OPEB liability
Due to other funds
Total noncurrent liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources:
Deferred pension inflows
Total deferred inflows of resources
Total liabilities
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for capital and debt service
Unrestricted
Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

* Amount eliminated in the Combined All Funddwon.

THE PORT OF PORTLAND
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET — ALL FUNDS

June 30, 2018
Marine & Other Airport
Bond
Combined Total Marine General Construction Total Revenue Revenue Construction PFC PFC CFC
All Funds & Other Fund Fund Airport Fund Bond Fund Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund
$ 47,500,371 $ 47,462,291 $ 47,416,844 $ 45,447  $ 38,080 $ 08838,
317,009,753 206,857,337 193,408,180 13,449,157 1161162, 110,152,416
73,839,620 73,839,620 $ 44,307,894 $ 18,991,086 $ 600,180 $ 9,940,460
28,412,145 11,828,525 9,529,345 2,299,180 16,583,620 16,583,620
6,820,346 2,499,127 2,499,127 4,321,219 4,321,219
473,582,235 268,647,280 252,853,496 15,793,784 204534, 131,095,335 44,307,894 18,991,086 600,180 9,940,460
4025381, 2,728,553 2,728,553 399,835,985 22,150,643 37,699,71 206,015,135 115,400,933 14,596,087 $ 3,973,470
10,578,731 10,578,731 2,927,202 6,300,849 1,350,680
413,143,269 2,728,553 2,728,553 410,414,716 22,150,643 7,698,717 208,942,337 121,701,782 14,596,087 5,324,150
57,280,912 57,280,912 23,025,200 34,255,712
1,266,276,476 160,412,841 160,412,841 1,1056863 1,105,863,635
349,539,979 107,255,070 83,447,833 23,807,237 242,084,9 68,042,167 174,242,742
933,439 145,015 145,015 788,424 674,116 114,308
29,310,530 * 29,310,530 *
2,203,682 517,454 517,454 1,686,228 1,686,228
2,089,377,757 357,650,375 299,587,426 58,062,949 0N38RQ12 1,198,416,789 37,699,717 383,185,079 121,806,09 14,596,087 5,324,150
22,571,834 22,571,834 15,261,969 7,309,865
31,237,602 7,091,584 17,091,584 14,146,018 14,146,018
5,864,000 5,864,000 5,864,000
653,436 17,091,584 17,091,584 42,581,852 29,407,987 4566 7,309,865
$ 2,622,633,42 $ 643,389,23 $ 569,532,50 $ 73,856,73 $ 2,008,554,71 $ 1,358,920,11 $ 87,871,61 $ 402,176,16 $ 129,726,13 $ 2453654 $ 5,324,15
$ 32,946,288 $ 46,288 $ 4,446,288 $ 28,500,000 $ 28,500,000
49,294,320 27,151,818 25,862,585 $ 1,289,233 22,142,502 22,142,502
108320 5,266,566 5,266,566 5,554,245 5,554,245
7,648,528 4,524,424 4,524,424 3,124,104 3,124,104
100,709,947 41,389,096 40,099,863 1,289,233 9,320,851 59,320,851
,338,768 38,370,768 $ 29,941,838 $ 598,930 $ 7,830,000
16,476,516 16,476,516 14,366,056 2,110,460
16,563,717 16,563,717 $ 16,562,467 1,250
2,428,619 2,428,619 2,428,619
73,839,620 73,839,620 44,307,894 18,991,086 600,180 9,940,460
174,549,567 41,389,096 40,099,863 1,289,233 133,160,471 59,320,851 44,307,894 18,991,086 600,180 9,940,460
60E08 47,605,532 47,605,532 12,698,087 3,216,087 5,864,00 3,618,000
877,731,977 82,232,012 82,232,012 795,499,965 671,807,6 123,592,284
72,019,130 26,673,422 26,673,422 45,345,708 42,427,688 4391704 1,478,316
93,056,174 50,508,217 50,508,217 42,547,957 42,547,957
29,310,530 * 29,310,530 *
1,103,110,900 207,019,183 207,019,183 925,402,247 78343 7,303,704 128,688,600
4,810,607 2,606,781 2,606,781 2,203,826 2,203,826
4,800,6 2,606,781 2,606,781 2,203,826 2,203,826
1,282,471,074 251,015,060 249,725,827 1,289,233 1,66(534 850,934,620 51,611,598 18,991,086 129,288,780 409160
901,951,056 303,902,259 245,839,310 58,062,949 598,948, 468,838,820 (29,445,000) 286,271,088 (119,786,111) 7,830,000)
313,639,601 2,728,553 2,728,553 310,911,048 318,341 068713 96,913,991 120,223,466 22,426,087 $ 5,324,150
124,571,697 85,743,367 71,238,816 14,504,551 38,828,330 38,828,330
1,340,162,354 392,374,179 319,806,679 72,567,500 98,78 507,985,491 36,260,013 383,185,079 437,355 14896, 5,324,150
$ 2,622,633,428 $ 643,389,239 $ 569,532,506 _$ 73,856,733 ,088554,719 $ 1,358,920,111 _$ 87,871,611 _$ 402,176,165 29,726,135 $ 24,536,547 $ 5,324,150




THE PORT OF PORTLAND
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
SCHEDULE OF NET REVENUES

for the year ended June 30, 2018

Operating revenues:
Airline revenues
Concessions and other rentals
Other

Interest income - revenue fund and revenue bond fun

Costs of operation and maintenance, excluding degiren:

Salaries, wages and fringe benefits

Contract, professional and consulting services

Materials and supplies

Utilities

Equipment rents, repair and fuel

Insurance

Travel and management expense

Allocation of general and administration expense
of the Port of Portland

Other

Net revenues, as defined by Section 2(r) of
Ordinance No. 15¢

* Presented in accordance with provisions of Cadge Nos. 155 and 323 (ordinances authorizing esuaf Airport
revenue bonds), which are different from gelheecepted accounting principles.
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$ 104,680,072
135,184,377
2,399,976
242,264,425
584,820

242,849,245

48,713,662
34,259,947
6,005,588
11,566,831
1,434,655
1,841,819
3,702,878

18,662,051
4,019,896
130,207,327

$ 112,641,901



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
SCHEDULE OF COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE NOS. 155 ANB23
DEBT SERVICE COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Section 16(ii) of Ordinance No. 155 and Sectionfd®rdinance No. 323 authorizing the issuanc
Portland International Airport revenue bonds regtiirat net revenues, as defined by Ordinance Ng.it5
each fiscal year must equal at least 130 percethiegbrior lien bond (PLB) and subordinate lien ¢éhon
(SLB) debt service requirements, as defined, fehdiscal year on all outstanding Portland Inteiorail
Airport revenue bonds. The Airport paid off thetlaf the PLBs in 1993, and has covenanted nastaei

any further PLBs.

The Airport has complied with this provision comgdiin accordance with ordinance definitions aofod:

Net revenues, per accompanying schedule
of net revenues

SLB debt service requirement:
Interest and principal amount

Total net revenues required

Excess of net revenues over 130% of SLB gebfice requireme

Section 5f of Ordinance No. 323 also requires ithatfiscal year when there is excess principal ds
defined in Section 5f of Ordinance No. 323, theregenues in excess of 130% of the SLB debt service

requirement equal 100% of such excess principauamo

Excess of net revenues over 130%
of SLB debt service requirement

Excess principal amount
Total additional net revenues required

Excess of net revenues over 130% of SLB dehiice
requirement and 100% of excess principaliremer

In addition, Section 5f of Ordinance No. 323 regaithat the net nevenues, together with other ats
that are available to pay other swap obligatioesgjefined in Ordinance No. 323, are sufficientay pll
other swap obligations and junior lien obligati¢@her Obligations) when due.

Excess of net revenues over 130% of SLB debt servic
requirement and 100% of excess principal requerg

Other amounts available to pay other swap obligatio
Total available to pay Other Obligations
Other swap obligations
Junior lien obligations

Total Other Obligations

Excess amount over 130% of SLB debt semageirement,
100% of excess principal requirement, @tiger Obligation
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$ 52,827,050

$ 112,641,918

68,675,165

43,966,75

43,966,753

43,966,75

43,966,753

43,966,753

43,966,75



THE PORT OF PORTLAND
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
SCHEDULE OF REVENUE BOND
CONSTRUCTION ACCOUNT ACTIVITY

for the year ended June 30, 2018

Capitalized
Bond Proceeds Interest
Portion Portion
Construction account, June 30, 2017 $ 164,958,783 $ 22,835,297
Excess issuance cost proceeds 17,697
Interest income 1,668,259 224,510
166,644,739 23,059,807
Construction expenditures 69,177,148
Transfers to revenue bond fund 8,499,052
Construction account, June 30, 2 $ 97,467,59 $ 14,560,75

NOTE: This schedule is provided in compliance v@tction 8d. of Ordinance No. 323.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
SCHEDULE OF GENERAL ACCOUNT AMOUNT AVAILABLE FOR
PAYMENT TO AIRPORT REVENUE BOND FUND AND RATIO TO
REVENUE BOND DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENT
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Net revenues, per accompanying schedule of
net revenues $ 112,641,918

Less revenue bond fund interest income (690,580)

Applied to General Account, available
to be applied to debt service of bc $ 111,951,33 (1)

Bond debt service requirement, per accompanying

schedule of compliance with Ordinance Nos. 1 22! $ 52,827,05 (2)
Ratio (1)/(2 2.1z
Required rati 1.3C

NOTE: This schedule is provided in compliance v@gction 5f of Ordinance No. 323.
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
SCHEDULE OF PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE ACTIVITY
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Balances at June 22017
PFC revenues:
PFC bond account
Capital account
Interest earnings
Transfer from reserve account to bond account
Bond payments to trustee

Costs of approved PFC projects

Other, net

Balances at June . 201¢

$

$

First First

Lien Lien

Bond Reserve Capital
Account Account Account

139,477 $ 14,310,701 $ 98,241,915

14,733,582
23,407,013
226,584 88,035
226,58 (226,584)
(14,814,257)
(29,274)
(5,907)

285,38t $ 14,310,70 $ 121,701,78

NOTE: This schedule is provided in compliance v@8gction 9(d) of Ordinance No. 395-B.

61



THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS AND OUTSTANNG BALANCES
for the year ended June 30, 2018

Property Current Property
Taxes Levy as Taxes
Receivable Extended Deduct Deduct Cancellations Redeivab
Fiscal June 30, by Cash Discounts and June 30, Interest
Year 2017 Assessors Collections Allowed Adjustments 2018 Collected
2017-18 $ 12,524,063 $ (11,928,726) $ (333,003) $ (77,156) $ 185178 $ (20,671)
2016-17 $ 217,252 (81,919) (28,204) 107,129 8,618
2015-16 122,205 (26,679) (19,145) 76,381 3,954
2014-15 92,222 (21,506) (4,524) 66,192 5,117
2013-14 65,006 (10,416) (2,426) 52,164 2,899
2012-13
and prior 172,068 (2,651) (4,146) 165,271 810
$ 668,753 $ 12,524,063 $ (12,071,897) $ (333,003) $ (135,6CH 652,315 $ 727
Reconciliation to income from property taxes:
Current levy $ 12,524,063
Deduct discounts allowed (333,003)
Cancellations and adjustments (135,601)
$___ 12055459
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF BOND AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT PRINCIPACRANSACTIONS — BY SERIES

LIMITED TAX PENSION BONDS:
Series 2002A, 2.00%to 7.4
Series 2002B, 6.60% to 6.8
Series 2005, 4.00% to 5.5

Total Limited Tax Pension Bon

PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT
REVENUE BONDS
Series 18A, 1.60%
Series 18B, 1.58¥%
Series 19, 4.00% to 5.50%
Series 20A, 3.00% to 5.01
Series 20B, 2.00% to 4.5
Series 20C, 4.00% to 5.0
Series 21B, 2.00% to 5.0
Series 21C, 4.375%t0 5.0
Series 22, 4.00% to 5.0
Series 23, 5.00
Series 24A, 5.00
Series 24B, 5.00
Total Portland Intl Airport Revenue Bor

PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE REVENUE BONDS:

Series 2011A, 2.50%to 5.5
Series 2012A, 2.569
Series 2012B, 5.00% to 5.7
Total Portland Int'l Airport Passenger Facilitia@@ge Revenue Bon
Total Port Bonds

CONTRACTS & LOANS PAYABLE:

City of Portland LID, Series 2003, 5.3
Oregon Department of Transportation, MMTF-000%
Oregon Department of Transportation, MMTF-000%
Oregon Business Development Dept., BO800H)%.® 4.009
Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, 2.8
Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, 4.

Total Contracts & Loans Paya

TOTAL PORT LONG-TERM DEBT

Note: Interest rates relate to original issuert@e coupons are no longer outstanc

Maturity
Date

06/01/2(
06/01/2¢
06/01/2¢

07/01/2¢
07/01/2¢
07/01/3¢
07/01/4(
07/01/4(
07/01/2¢
07/01/1¢
07/01/2:
07/01/4¢
07/01/3¢
07/01/4:
07/01/47

07/01/3:
07/01/2¢
07/01/1¢

04/01/2:
03/31/2:
07/01/2:
12/01/3(
10/01/1¢
06/01/2¢

* Interest rate at June 30, 2018. Rataitable, depending on weekly res

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2017-2018 Transactions

Outstanding June 30, 2018

Outstanding ¢ Due Withir
June 30, 201 Issue Maturec Redeeme Total One Yea
$ 2,628,21. $ 893,81 $ 893,81! $ 1,734,39 $ 901,61¢
43,525,00 43,525,00
15,955,00 875,00( 875,00( 15,080,00 985,00(
62,108,21 1,768,81! 1,768,81! 60,339,39 1,886,61!
41,265,00 4,435,001 4,435,001 36,830,00 4,510,001
41,265,00 4,430,001 4,430,001 36,835,00 4,515,001
2,945,001 2,945,001 2,945,001
18,685,00 1,660,001 1,660,001 17,025,00 1,745,001
19,350,00 505,00( 505,00( 18,845,00 525,00(
72,915,00 5,860,001 5,860,001 67,055,00 6,165,001
16,040,00 7,830,001 7,830,001 8,210,001 8,210,001
27,685,00 27,685,00
90,050,00 90,050,000
109,440,00 109,440,00 3,065,001
21,965,00 21,965,00
211,275,00 211,275,00 710,00(
672,880,00 27,665,00 27,665,00 645,215,00 29,445,00
68,950,00 1,650,001 1,650,001 67,300,00 1,710,001
57,315,00 120,00( 120,00( 57,195,00 2,790,001
9,005,001 5,675,001 5,675,001 3,330,001 3,330,001
135,270,00 7,445,001 7,445,00! 127,825,00 7,830,00!
$ 870,258,213 $ 36,878,815 $ 36,878,815 $ 833,379,398 $ 39,161,618
$ 4,087,75 $ 626,36( $ 626,36( $ 3,461,39 $ 660,50°
800,00( 200,00( 200,00 600,00( 200,00
3,713,501 742,70( 742,70( 2,970,801
6,404,02! 367,76! 367,76: 6,036,26: 379,33
921,61: 402,35 402,35! 519,26( 413,93(
11,931,36 866,11: 866,11. 11,065,25 905,90:
$ 21,858,260 $ 3,205,281 $ 3,205,281 $ 24,652,9/7 $ 2,559,671
$ 898,116,476 $ 40,084,103 $ 40,084,103 $ 858,032,373 $ 41,721,288
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF BOND AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT INTERESITRANSACTIONS — BY SERIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

2017 - 18 Transactio

Interes Interes Maturinc
Outstanding ¢ Maturec Fluctuation Outstanding ¢ Within
June 30, 201 Issue( and Pai and Redemptiol June 30, 201 One Yea

LIMITED TAX PENSION BONDS:

Series 2002A, 2.00% to 7.4 $ 6,471,78! $ 1,961,18! $ 4,510,60. $ 2,218,38:

Series 2002B, 6.60% to 6.8 23,084,72 2,965,95! 20,118,77: 2,965,95!

Series 2005, 4.00%t0 5.5 5,311,34 794,09¢ 4,517,24: 751,58(
Total Limited Tax Pension Bon 34,867,86 5,721,23 29,146,62 5,935,91.
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

REVENUE BONDS

Series 18A, 1.60% 1,656,43: 436,74¢ $ (1,541,037 2,760,721 589,28(

Series 18B, 1.58% 1,639,461 436,87« (1,524,093 2,726,68! 581,99!

Series 19, 4.00% to 5.50% 73,62¢ 73,62¢

Series 20A, 3.125% to 5.00% 8,024,05: 716,13: 7,307,92: 631,00t

Series 20B, 2.00% to 4.50% 11,048,32 768,65( 10,279,67 748,05(

Series 20C, 4.00% to 5.00% 23,140,12 3,499,25I 19,640,87 3,198,62!

Series 21B, 2.00% to 5.00% 811,50( 606,25( 205,25( 205,25(

Series 21C, 4.375%t05.0 6,030,03 1,320,96: 4,709,06! 1,320,96:

Series 22, 4.00% to 5.0 79,511,50 4,484,701 75,026,801 4,484,70!

Series 23, 5.00 72,553,00 5,472,001 67,081,00 5,395,37!

Series 24A, 5.00 31,333,65 475,90¢ 30,857,75! 1,098,25I

Series 24B, 5.00 200,844,87 4,577,62! 196,267,25 10,563,75!
Total Portland Int'l Airport Revenue Bor 436,666,59 22,868,72 (3,065,13C 416,862,99 28,817,24
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE REVENUE BONDS:

Series 2011, 2.50%t0 5.5 39,816,85 3,506,32! 36,310,52 3,430,57!

Series 2012A,  2.569 3,813,77! 559,50: (3,290,957 6,545,22! 1,464,18:

Series 2012B, 5.00% to 5.7 391,62! 308,37! 83,25( 83,25(
Total Portland Int'l Airport Passenger Faciltiiarge Revenue Bor 44,022,25 4,374,20: (3,290,957 42.,939,00 4,978,001

Total Port Bonds $ 515,556,702 $ 32,964,158 $ (6,356,087) $ 488,948,631 $ 39,731,160
CONTRACTS & LOANS PAYABLE:

City of Portland LID, Series 2003, 5.3 $ 664,44¢ $ 202,34 $ 462,10 $ 168,19:

Oregon Business Development Dept., BOB00H)%.® 4.009 1,960,07: 230,06¢ 1,730,00! 220,87¢

Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, 2.8 30,84¢ 20,96: 9,88t 9,38¢

Banc of America Leasing & Capital, LLC, 4. 3,191,54, 519,19{ 2,672,34! 479,40
Total Contracts & Loans Paya $ 5,846,91. $ 972,56 $ 4,874,34 $ 877,86(

TOTAL PORT LONG-TERM DEBT $ 521,403,616 $ 33,936,725 $ (6,356,087) $ 493,822,978 $ 40,609,020

Note: Interest rates relate to original issuert&®e coupons are no longer outstanc
* Interest rate at June 30, 2018. Rate isabéej depending on weekly res
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LIMITED TAX PENSION BONDS:

Series 2002
2.00% to 7.41¢

Series 2002
6.60% to 6.85¢

Series 20(
4.00% to 5.50%

Total Limited Tax Pension Bon
Total Limited Tax Pension Bonds

PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

REVENUE BONDS

Series 18
1.60% *
Series 18
1.58% *
Series 20.
3.125% to 5.00"
Series 20
2.00% to 4.50¢
Series 20
4.00% to 5.00¢
Series 21
2.00% to 5.00¢
Series 21
4.375% to 5.00'
Series 2
4.00% to 5.00¢
Series 2
5.00%
Series 24
5.00%
Series 24
5.00%

Total Portland Int!l Airport Revenue Bor
Total Portland Int'!l Airport Revenue Bonds
PORTLAND INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT

PASSENGER FACILITY CHARGE REVENUE BONDS:

-Principa
-Interes

-Principa
-Interes

-Principa
-Interest
-Principa

-Interest

-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Intstre

Series 2011
2.50% to 5.50¢

Series 2012
2.56%*

Series 2012
5.00% to 5.75¢

Total Portland Int'l Airport PFC Revenue Bo
Total Portland Int'l Airport PFC Revenue Bo

Total Port Bonds
Total Port Bonds

-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principa
-Interes
-Principal
-Interest

Date of
Issue

03/28/0:

03/28/0:

09/23/0¢

06/11/0¢

06/11/0¢

11/02/1(

11/02/1(

11/02/1(

04/05/1:

08/10/1:

09/25/1+

03/31/1¢

01/25/1°

01/25/1%

11/10/1:

08/15/1:

10/31/1%

THE PORT OF PORTLAND

AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE REQUIREMENTS FOR RETIREMENT OBRDED AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT — BY SERIES

Total 2023-24 t 2028-29 t 2033-34 i 2038-39 t 2043-44 t
Requirement 2018-1¢ 2019-2( 2020-2: 2021-2; 2022-2: 2027-2¢ 2032-3: 2037-3¢ 2042-4: 2047-4¢
$ 1,73439 $ 901,61t $ 832,78
4,510,60: 2,218,38 2,292,22(
43,525,00 265,000 $ 3,695,000 $ 4,240,000 $ 4,840,000 $  30,485,00
20,118,77 2,965,95! 2,965,95! 2,947,79 2,694,609 2,404,25! 6,140,14
15,080,00 985,00( 1,100,001 1,230,001 1,365,001 1,510,001 8,890,001
4,517,248 751,580 703,719 650,270 588,721 580,4 1,302,542
$ 6033939 $ 1,8866L $ 2,197,78 $ 4,925000 $ 5,605000 $ 6,350,000 $ 39,375,00
$ 29,146,6% 5935913 5961,889$ 3,598,067 $ 3,283,411 $ 2,924,666 $ 7,442,683
$ 36,830,000 $ 4,510,000 $ 4,705000 $ 4,935000 $ 5155000 $ 3,295000 $ 14,230,00
2,760,72! 589,28( 517,12( 441,84( 362,88( 280,40( 569,20(
36,835,00 4,515,001 4,705,000 4,930,000 5,155,000 3,295,001 14,235,00
2,726,68! 581,99: 510,65¢ 436,31 358,42: 276,97+ 562,32
17,025,00 1,745,000 685,00( 705,00( 725,00( 745,00( 4,140,000 $ 2,980,000 $ 3,105,000 $ 2,195,00
7,307,92: 631,00t 577,10¢ 556,25( 534,35; 510,91¢ 2,142,04! 1,406,57! 807,39 142,26¢
18,845,00 525,00( 545,00( 570,00( 590,00( 615,00( 3,380,001 4,080,001 4,995,000 3,545,000
10,279,67 748,05( 726,65( 702,92! 680,88: 661,66¢ 2,974,47 2,252,901 1,301,66i 230,45¢
67,055,00 6,165,001 4,845,001 5,085,001 5,335,00( 5,600,001 32,515,00 7,510,001
19,640,87 3,198,62! 2,923,37! 2,675,12! 2,414,62! 2,141,25! 6,100,12! 187,75
8,210,001 8,210,001
205,25( 205,25(
27,685,00 5,040,00! 5,250,000 5,560,001 5,785,001 6,050,001
4,709,06! 1,320,96: 1,194,96: 937,71 681,36: 426,10( 147,96¢
90,050,00 1,780,001 1,850,001 1,940,001 2,040,001 11,835,00 15,105,00 19,265,00 24,590,00 11,645,00
75,026,80 4,484,701 4,449,101 4,367,25! 4,272,501 4,173,001 19,188,62 15,836,37 11,561,12 6,104,75! 589,37!
109,440,00 3,065,001 3,215,000 3,380,000 3,545,001 3,720,001 21,605,00 27,580,00 20,080,00 23,250,00
67,081,00 5,395,37! 5,238,37! 5,073,500 4,900,37! 4,718,75 20,532,87 14,414,50 6,604,12! 203,12
21,965,00 21,965,00
30,857,75 1,098,25! 1,098,251 1,098,25! 1,098,25( 1,098,25! 5,491,25! 5,491,25! 5,491,25( 5,491,25( 3,401,501
211,275,00 710,00( 745,00( 3,965,000 4,170,001 4,375,001 25,390,00 32,405,00 41,350,00 52,770,00 45,395,00
196,267,25 10,563,75 10,528,25 10,491,00 10,292,75 10,084,25 46,912,00 39,897,50 30,945,00 19,521,75 7,031,000
$ 64521500 $ 29,44500 $ 26,265,000 $ 30,670,00 $ 32,17500 $ 29,470,00 $ 133,380,00 $ 89,660,00 $ 88,79500 $106,350,00 $  79,005,00
$ 416,862,998 $ 28,817,241 $ 27,763,845$ 26,780,175 $ 25,596,400 $ 24,371,562 $ 104,620,888 $ 79,486,850 $ 56,710,562 $ 31,693,600 $ 11,021,875
$ 67,300,00 $ 1,710,000 $ 150,000 $ 135000 $ 125,000 $ 105,000 $ 25,240,00 $ 39,835,00
36,310,52 3,430,57! 3,385,57! 3,381,301 3,377,24 3,373,501 14,941,12 4,421,20
57,195,00 2,790,001 7,955,001 8,370,001 8,805,00( 9,265,001 20,010,00
6,545,22! 1,464,18 1,392,75 1,189,11 974,84( 749,43 774,90
3,330,000 3,330,000
83,25( 83,25(
$ 127,82500 $ 7,830,000 $ 8,105,000 $ 8,505,000 $ 8,930,000 $ 9,370,000 $ 45,250,00 $ 39,835,00
“$ 42,939,00 4,778, 4570,41 $ 412294 $ 15,716,083 $ 4,421,20
$ 833,379,398 $ 39,161,618 $ 36,567,780 $ 44,100,000 $ 46,710,000 $ 45,190,000 $ 218,005,000 $ 129,495,000 $ 88,795,000 $ 106,350,000 $ 79,005,000
$ 488,948,631$ 39,731,160 $ 38,504,066 $ 34,948,653 $ 33,231,895 $ 31,419,168 $ 127,779,601 $ 83,908,051 $ 56,710,562 $ 31,693,600 $ 11,021,875
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THE PORT OF PORTLAND

SCHEDULE OF FUTURE REQUIREMENTS FOR RETIREMENT OBRDED AND OTHER LONG-TERM DEBT — BY SERIES
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018, Continued

Date of Tota 2023-24 t 2028-29 t 2033-34 t 2038-39 tt 2043-44 t
Issue Requirement 2018-1¢ 2019-2( 2020-2: 2021-2; 2022-20 2027-2¢ 2032-3: 2037-3¢ 2042-4; 2047-4¢
CONTRACTS & LOANS PAYABLE:
City of Portland LIl -Principa  04/01/0: $ 3,461,39 $ 660,500 $ 696,51t $ 734,48 $ 774,52¢ $ 595,35¢
5.32% -Interes 462,10¢ 168,19! 132,18° 94,21% 54,17¢ 13,33¢
Oregon Department of Transportation MMTF-C -Principa  05/10/0¢ 600,00( 200,00( 200,00( 200,00(
Oregon Department of Transportation MMTF-C -Principa  07/06/1( 2,970,801 742,70( 742,70( 742,70( 742,70(
Oregon Business Development Dept. BO: -Principa  08/31/1( 6,036,26: 379,33: 386,26: 398,25( 415,63¢ 428,11 $ 2,370,077 $  1,658,59
2.00% to 4.00¢ -Interes 1,730,00! 220,87¢ 209,49! 197,90° 183,96¢ 169,42: 616,11( 132,23(
Banc of America Leasing & Capital, L -Principa  11/01/1: 519,26( 413,93( 105,33(
2.84% -Interes 9,88t 9,38¢ 49¢
Banc of America Leasing & Capital, L -Principa  06/06/1: 11,065,25 905,90: 947,51¢ 991,04 1,036,57! 1,084,19: 6,100,01!
4.5% -Interes 2,672,34! 479,40« 437,78 394,25¢ 348,73( 301,10¢ 711,06:
Total Contracts & Loans Paya -Principa $ 2465297 $ 2559670 $ 3,07832 $ 3,06648 $ 2,969,44 $ 2,850,36 $ 8,470,09- $  1,658,59:
Total Contracts & Loans Paya -Interes § 4387434 $  8/786( $ 779960 $ 68638 $ 586,87, $ 483,86« $  1,32/,17__$ 132,23
TOTAL PORT LONG-TERM DEBT -Principal $ 858,0373 $ 41,721,288 $ 39,646,106 $ 47,166,484 $ 49,679,443 $ 48,040,364 $ 226,475,094 $ 131,153,594 $ 88,795,000 $ 106,350,000 $ 79,005,000
TOTAL PORT LONG-TERM DEBT -Interest $ 493,8928 $ 40,609,020 $ 39,284,034 $ 35,635,033 $ 33,818,766 $ 31,903,032 $ 129,106,772 $ 84,040,284 $ 56,710,562 $ 31,693,600 $ 11,021,875

Note: Interest rates relate to original iss@&rtain coupons are no longer outstant
** |nterest rate at June 30, 2018. Rate is vaeialepending on weekly resets.

INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT REVENUE BONDS:

Horizon Air Projec -Principa  08/07/9° $  17,300,00 $ 17,300,00
1997 Series, 1.633¢ -Interes 2,514,41  $ 281,99 $ 281,99 $ 281,99 $ 281,99 $ 281,99( 1,104,46
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND -Principa $ 17,300,00
TOTAL INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BONDS -Interest $ 214,411 $ 281,990 $ 281,990 $ 281,990 $ 281,990 $ 281,990 $ 1,104,461

* Interest rate at June 30, 2018. Rate is varjat#pending on prim
Note: Interest rates relate to original iss@ertain coupons are no longer outstanding. Thisduale is provided for information purposes orliydustrial development revenue bonds are not ditjiabr contingent liability of the Por



AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES
REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS




MOSSADAMS

Report of Independent Auditors on Compliance and on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in
Accordance with Oregon Municipal Auditing Standards

The Board of Commissioners
Port of Portland

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Port of Portland (the Port), as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2018, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2018. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the provisions of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations,
prescribed by the Secretary of State. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the basic financial statements are free of material
misstatement.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Port’s basic financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, grants, including provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules OAR 162-10-0000 to 162-10-0330, as set forth below, noncompliance with
which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts:

Instances of
Non-Compliance

OAR Section Identified?
162-010-0000 Preface None Noted
162-010-0010 Definitions None Noted
162-010-0020 Introduction None Noted
162-010-0030 General Requirements None Noted
162-010-0050 Financial Statements None Noted
162-010-0115 Required Supplementary Information (RSI) None Noted
162-010-0120 Other Supplementary Information None Noted

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures / Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balances, / Net

162-010-0130 Position, Budget and Actual (Each Fund) None Noted
162-010-0140 Schedule of Accountability for Independently Elected Officials Not applicable
162-010-0150 Schedule of Property Tax Transactions or Acreage Assessments None Noted
162-010-0160 Schedule of Bonded or Long-Term Debt Transactions None Noted
162-010-0170 Schedule of Future Requirements for Retirement of Bonded or Long-Term Debt None Noted
162-010-0190 Other Financial or Statistical Information None Noted
162-010-0200 Required Disclosures and Independent Auditors Comments None Noted
162-010-0230 Accounting Records and Internal Control None Noted
162-010-0240 Public Fund Deposits None Noted
162-010-0250 Indebtedness None Noted
162-010-0260 Budget Yes
162-010-0270 Insurance and Fidelity Bonds None Noted
162-010-0280 Programs Funded from Outside Sources None Noted
162-010-0295 Highway Funds Not applicable
162-010-0300 Investments None Noted
162-010-0310 Public Contracts and Purchasing None Noted
162-010-0315 State School Fund Not applicable
162-010-0316 Public Charter Schools Not applicable
162-010-0320 Other Comments and Disclosures None Noted
162-010-0330 Extensions of Time to Deliver Audit Reports Not applicable
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However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit
and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed an instance of
noncompliance that is required to be reported under Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon
Municipal Corporations, prescribed by the Secretary of State. The Port experienced a budgetary
over-expenditure in one fund which is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Port’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Port’s internal
control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent,
or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies,
in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of
this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that have not been identified. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify
any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Board of Commissioners, management, and
the State of Oregon, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than those
specified parties.

James Lanzarotta, Partner
for Moss Adams LLP

Portland, Oregon
October 22, 2018
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